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--- Upon commencing at 9:32 a.m.


MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.


Good morning, everyone.  The Ontario Energy Board is sitting today in an application made by Hydro One pursuant to section 98 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.  It's an application to get interim access to certain lands.


The Board gave the application file number EB-2007-0051.  Today we will hear argument in this case by the counsel who appeared yesterday.


The Board, in its letter earlier, about two weeks ago, asked parties who wished to give oral comments to inform the Board, and yesterday in the hearing I asked anyone interested in making oral comments to sign up with Staff.  No one did so, from either communication.


Today we expect to complete argument by one o'clock.  If there are no parties interested in making oral comment, we will adjourn the hearing at that time.


If there are oral comments, we will hear them following argument.


If anyone here would like to make oral comments, please inform Ontario Energy Board Staff at the table outside before the morning break.


Yesterday I gave fairly lengthy introductory comments explaining what was in and out of scope in this proceeding.  I will not repeat them this morning, unless there is anyone here who was not here yesterday morning who would like me to do so.  


Is there anyone here who would like me to do that?


All right.  We will proceed with argument, then.  We will begin with Mr. Millar from Board Staff, and then Mr. Ross.  Mr. Millar.


Submissions by Mr. Millar:

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you, Madam Chair, and good morning, members of the panel.  I will be very, very brief, probably about two minutes.


Board Staff is not taking a position on whether or not the Board should approve or not approve the section 98 application.  The viewpoints are well represented here by others in the room and you will hear plenty of that from other people, so I don't think there is any need for me to chime in on anything on that specific point.  


I do have a couple of very brief comments on the conditions that have been proposed by Hydro One.  Generally, Staff thinks the conditions are very good, probably in fact a slight improvement on the initial conditions that we had sent out, subject to the adding of condition 13 now, I believe it is, relating to the damages and the reference to 98(2).


You will recall that there was a bit of -- I don't want to call it a dispute, but Mr. Nettleton asked some clarifying questions related to the oral versus written notice issue, so I do want to touch very briefly on that.


This relates to, I believe it is, condition number 2, and as it is currently written it requires either oral or written notice to the people whose land is to be accessed.


You will recall that I asked the witnesses of Hydro One if they would agree that, at a minimum, providing written notice would be prudent, and then perhaps a phone call or something on top of that.  


In fact, I went back to the transcript just to confirm my recollection, and I don't know that you need to pull it up or even if you are able to pull it up right now.  It was just e-mailed out last night, but I am referring to page 27.


At the top of the page, I asked:

"So would there always be something in writing that goes to the owner?"


The question is whether they would also get a telephone call, as well.  Mr. Girard responded:  

"Yes, there will always be something in writing that goes to the owner in advance."


And then I say:

"Okay.  So always something in writing and then, where possible, a phone call, as well?"  


Mr. Girard says, "Yes."  In fact, he says it twice, a very emphatic: "Yes, yes".  So I think the record is quite clear on what the witnesses said when I initially put the questions to them.


You may also recall I suggested to the witnesses it might be prudent that in delivering the written notice - and we had some discussions if it was personally served or registered mail - I suggested to them it might be prudent to include the conditions, assuming they're approved or in whatever form they are approved.


He agreed with that suggestion, as well.  So, in my submission, there is no way to provide that except in writing.


I did take their comments that sometimes, actually, a telephone call might be better than written notice, because you can confirm who you have spoken to and make sure that they understand the dates that Hydro One proposes to appear, but that doesn't take away from the fact that it is still useful to send a written notice, as well.  


There is no harm, in my submission, in requiring, at minimum, written notice be sent.  At worst, it is not received and not read, and, at best, it provides a very clear indication of when Hydro One intends to appear, because it is all written down.  And also they could attach those draft conditions.


So again, Madam Chair, I think the record was fairly clear as to what the witnesses' answers were.  I haven't heard any reasons why they shouldn't provide written notice, at a minimum. 


So in Board Staff's submission, that should be a very modest change to the conditions, and it would require, at minimum, written notice and, where possible or where prudent, a phone call or some type of personal notice, as well.


Madam Chair, I said I would be brief and I am going to stick with that.  Those are all the comments I have on the conditions and, in fact, on the application.  So subject to any questions you have, those are my submissions.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.


Mr. Ross.


Submissions by Mr. Ross:

MR. ROSS:  Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Board.


I agree with my friend's submissions with regards to notice, and I will deal now, prior to entering into my submissions proper, with the other condition that I feel requires some amendment or addition, and that is the condition which is complained in -- or, excuse me, contained in Exhibit B, tab 1, schedule 3, which was filed yesterday, which is the paragraph D as relates to the complaint process.


What I would like to do is simply read in the language that I think would be appropriate if an order were to go allowing access and conditions were attached to that order:


The property agent shall be the first point of contact for landowner complaints.  Complaints shall be tracked in a central database.  The property agent, in consultation with the special projects acquisition team leader, as needed, shall be responsible for initial resolution of complaints.  If the complaint cannot be resolved, it shall be referred to the special projects acquisition team leader for resolution.  Thereafter, unresolved issues shall be dealt with pursuant to 98(2) of the OEB Act.  Upon request, landowners shall be provided with copies of any and all complaints in the central database and the details of their resolution.


At this point, I'm going to be making my submissions with regards to our position as to whether an order under 98(1) -- excuse me, 98(1.1) should be made at all.


The most fundamental right of a private property owner is the power to exclude.  The dictionary of Canadian law defines "ownership" as:

"The most far-ranging right.  In rem, the law allows a person to deal with something to the exclusion of all others."  (As read)


By granting leave for interim access the OEB is granting what amounts to appear interim easement by expropriation.  The dictionary of Canadian law defines "easement" as:

"A right annex to the land which permits the owner of the dominant tenement to require the owner of the servient tenement to suffer something on such land."  (As read)  


In this instance, it would be -- it would amount to an easement in gross, as it is a statutory body, that is the dominant tenement.


The Expropriation Act defines "expropriate" as:

"The taking of land without the consent of the owner by an expropriating authority in the exercise of its statutory powers."  (As read)


I am going to refer to Hydro One as HONI, just so it moves things along.  HONI has made no request for expropriation at this point, and, in fact, in their 92 -- section 92 application's prayer for relief, they seek expropriation only once the leave to construct is granted.


No application under section 99 of the OEB Act or the Expropriation Act has been made, and clearly the OEB itself, the Board itself, is not a person contemplated by section 99 of the OEB Act.


Thus, if interim access is granted, the expropriation necessary to affect this access would be initiated and undertaken by the OEB itself, not HONI, and this would then trigger the expropriation mechanisms and the compensation mechanisms under the Expropriation Act.  This would put the OEB in the position of both the expropriating authority and the approving authority, and then moving to the language of the Expropriation Act, the statutory authority.


If the OEB were to undertake this expropriation, they would consequently be liable for the compensation under the Expropriation Act related thereto or be forced to make an order directing HONI to indemnify the OEB itself from the compensation due.  A conflict of interest, unfortunately, arises in this situation.  

This can be avoided in two ways.  The OEB can order the negotiation of a contract acceptable to HONI and the landowners which articulates the compensation to be received for the interim-access expropriation; or, the OEB can order HONI to amend its application to include expropriation for the interim access and trigger the compensation mechanisms contemplated in the Expropriation Act.  

The Supreme Court of Canada stated in the Manitoba Fisheries Case: 
"The expropriations of property is one of the ultimate exercises in governmental authority.  To take all or part of a person's property constitutes a severe loss and a very significant interference with a citizen's rights.  It follows that the power of expropriating authority should be strictly construed in favour of those who have their rights affected."


This is in direct contrast to Mr. Skalski's suggestion when drafting the application for interim leave, that a broad interpretation was taken.  This answer can be found at page 162, line 24, to page 163, line 1 of the transcript delivered last evening.  

We recognize that some of the urgency issues in this matter were dealt with at the interlocutory –- at the motions.  We acknowledge that section 98(1.1) permits the Board to issue an interim order authorizing a person to enter on the land at the intended location of any part of a proposed were to make such surveys, test, et cetera.   There is, however, no inference in the OEB Act to the word "early," or the concept of early.  

We are dealing here with an application by HONI for an interim order granting access.  Hydro One has called this the early-access application.  It is not the province, we submit, of HONI to try to use this section to shortcut a more equitable and respectful process of first seeking permission from the individual landowners.  

The urgency here is that of the Ontario Power Authority, the government of Ontario, and Hydro One, and driven strictly by potential costs to be borne by the OPA, and HONI, if the line is not up by the OPA deadlines.  

The urgency and potential timelines and deadlines were known to HONI about a year and a half before the OPA's formal letter to HONI in March of 2007.  

This rush to a remarkably short process and to an interim order permitting access to 450 parcels of land is not a process that is strictly construed in favour of those whose rights are being affected, as the Supreme Court of Canada determined in the 1979 Manitoba Fisheries case.  

The consequences of urgency is being visited on the owners of the 450 parcels of land and HONI does not want to pay.  

The old adage that haste makes waste is true and it is true in this case.  This order should not be granted at this time.  Until HONI is prepared to compensate all of the landowners for what is, in effect as I've said an interim easement by expropriation over all of the land - not just the propose the new corridor - they should not be permitted on on the land.  

Section 98(1.1) was not drafted to prevent landowners from being compensated for the use of their land and the interference of their rights as property owners.  

This is an interference with property rights.  It does some violence to the owner's rights of peaceable enjoyment over all of their property.  It offends the owner's right to privacy.  It removes entirely that most basic right of private-property ownership, the power to exclude.  

There has been much reference to the public interest versus the property rights, but we must take great care, bearing in mind the overriding ruling of the Supreme Court of Canada in the Manitoba Fisheries case, not to allow the tyranny of the majority to trump the rights and sanctity of the minority, the 450 families who have already been and will continue to be deleteriously affected by this process.  

It is not, in our submission, appropriate to grant an order authorizing HONI and to enter onto lands.  The application is premature.  It should be adjourned for 60 to 90 days for HONI to negotiate compensation.  

Those respectfully -- thank you.  Also, given the complexity and rights affected and potential prejudice to the clients involved, we respectfully request costs, regardless of the outcome of the motion.  It would be ill-advised if our clients did not participate in this process and, again, we don't believe that the costs should be dependent on the success of our position, but more based on the fact that adequate representation is necessary in a process of this complexity, with this significant of potential ramifications for the clients.  

Barring any questions from the Board, those are our Submissions. 

MS. NOWINA:  I can assure you on the cost matter, Mr. Ross, it is not the practice of the Board for the award of costs to be based on the outcome of the decision.  

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  

MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Ross, I understand your very clear position on -- can you hear me okay?  

MS. ROSS:  No.  

MR. ROSS:  Sort of.  

MR. RUPERT:  There is no apparent switch on this thing.  Anyway. 

I understand your position on the basic issue here, the order.  But the first comment you made, I wasn't clear I understood that.  That's, I suppose, if we were to grant the interim order, you're suggesting that the language you read would be a part of our order in terms of directing Hydro One to have this kind of complaints process? 

MR. ROSS:  It would be a part of the conditions 
that -- so Hydro One has consented to certain conditions being made a part of their access to the land.  This would be in addition to those conditions.  

MR. RUPERT:  In addition.  Okay.  Thank you.  

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  

MS. CHAPLIN:  Sort of further on that, Mr. Ross the proposed additional condition.  I think you mentioned that you thought the -- or your position is that the complaints database information should be available to all landowners.  What would be the purpose of that and would there be any concerns around privacy on that front?  

MR. ROSS:  I believe the privacy issues could be dealt with in accordance with the PIDA and the necessary vetting of the documents.  The reason we would hope to have the database available is, generally, in the interests of justice, we want a similar remedy for a similar case.  

It would create some consistency, it would demand some consistency in the resolution process.  And it wouldn't allow for a divide-and-conquer kind of approach, where one person received far more substantial compensation for a similar case.  

MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay. 

MR. ROSS:  Again, and in the words, excuse me, of HONI, it assists in an open and transparent process, which I think is in everyone's interest.  

MS. CHAPLIN:  Actually, that leads into my sort of other question.  Your position of the importance of equitable treatment.  

How is that achieved, if Hydro One is encouraged to negotiate individual access rights with each of the landowners?  I think I missed your point on that.  

MR. ROSS:  I don't think it is necessary individual.  I think it is negotiating and comprehensive compensation scheme that will be acceptable to landowners, in general.  

And could be, then -- I believe that if a compensation scheme is negotiated and the Board finds it to be equitable, it could be included in an order, and then that order could be binding.  But the issue then of compensation for rights stripped has been dealt with.  And the obligation is then off the Board. 

MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you very much.  

MR. ROSS:  Just to clarify.  With regards to the conditions to be added, that is obviously our argument in the alternative.  This is our primary argument is that the order should not be made.  

MS. NOWINA:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Ross.  

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis.  

Submissions by Mr. Fallis:

MR. FALLIS:  Madam Chair, first of all, I adopt the submissions of Mr. Ross.  At the outset, I wish to point out to this Board that the authority given to the Ontario Energy Board to make an order granting access to Hydro One is a statutory authority.  It's written in section 98(1.1).  It's given to the Board by the legislature.  But that authority is limited to the land for which leave to construct is sought.  

The land -- and I took the liberty yesterday of presenting to Mr. Thomson a schedule map from the leave-to- construct application which showed an area shaded in green of approximately 175 to 200 feet in width, running the gambit of 180 kilometres from the Bruce to Milton, and indicated that was the strip that was the subject of the leave to construct and that all of the lands outside of that in the browny-orange colour, of other lot configurations below were not the subject of leave to construct.  

Mr. Skalski yesterday admitted in his evidence that the application, as it was originally drafted, was drawn broadly to include all of the additional lands and there is discussion in their office about whether or not they should do that, and I believe made a statement to this Board that it was abandoning the claim that the application enveloped more than just the green lands.  So I think I just want, for clarification purposes, the Board to understand that -- I would submit that its authority to grant leave is limited only to the "green lands" and not to any other lands, and that they can't get any other authority from the Board, other than for those green lands.

Descriptional problems.  If you do make the order, I don't know exactly how you describe what you're doing, because the problem is that there is no description to allow that to happen, so that the surveyors will have the authority to define where that is, after they have been there, I guess.  So it is sort of -- the problem that you're in, the chicken before the egg or the egg before the chicken, how you deal with that you will have to wrestle with.

Hydro One says that it wants your Board to grant access for the purposes set out in 98(1.1) and for other purposes, as well, which would be information-gathering for the environmental-assessment process that it seeks.  And it indicated yesterday that it wants those rights for up to two years.

Mr. Millar for the Board Staff also asked one of the witnesses if they intended to compensate the landowners for early access, and I think the Board member (sic) basically ducked the question by saying that he was -- that Hydro would compensate landowners for any damages incurred.  

But I think that in the cross-examination of Mr. Thomson, who indicated in his 30 years of experience with Ontario Hydro and Hydro One, that either of those authorities had always compensated landowners for the taking of any interest in their lands, except when Hydro One was there at the owner's request. 

He did indicate, clearly, though, that there was no intention to compensate owners for access at this time, and that he indicated that although the process was the same in the late 1970s as it is now, the testing hasn't changed.  The towers are basically the same.  The concerns in the ground are the same.  The only change was process, and because the process has changed, they were not going to provide compensation.

My friend Mr. Nettleton for Ontario Hydro in his summation invited you to look at the legislation and noted that there was no provision in the legislation, in the amendments to the OEB Act, to provide for any payment to be made to any landowner for any grant of access that your Board may grant to Ontario Hydro for that privilege being given to -- or to Hydro One for that privilege being given to Hydro One.

We submit, as Mr. Ross has submitted, that as one of the most basic property rights in the bundle of rights that any property owner has is the right to exclude persons from his property.  That is fundamentally, the basic core right of any landowner in the province of Ontario, and probably in Canada and other parts of the world.

Mr. Thomson admitted that Hydro One had now received written permission from some owners to gain access, but stated that no payments had been paid to any owner for access.  There was no statement made that no arrangement has been made to make a payment in the future.  That question didn't seem to get answered directly, and I think it's out there.  Hydro One may have actually negotiated for payments, but has said no payments have been made as of this point.  

He indicated that other than those few who gave permission to Hydro One, that no one else had consented to give up his right to exclude Hydro One from his property.

Therefore, as Mr. Ross has clearly indicated, this Board has the statutory right to grant to Hydro One access to the landowners' property, and, effectively, upon the making of that order, the order will expunge and pre-empt any right that the landowner had maintained up to that point to exclude anyone, including Hydro One, from his land and for a period of two years, as Mr. Girard indicated that he needed.

The infrequent enjoyment of the access proposed to be sought by the Board does not in any way diminish the rights that it will have acquired for those two years.  Hydro One at any time, 24-7, can come on that property as long as the order is in force.  Whether it chooses to do so, or not, is basically irrelevant.  It will have the authority to do that and it seeks it for a period of two years.  

So the right can be accessible and realized at any time during that period.  That's a long period of time.  It isn't just a momentary entry to go on the property.  It is a right which is there and will stay there for the time that the Board grants it, unless it time-limits it to any other time.  It could be exercised every single day, 24-7, if it wants.

As to Mr. Nettleton's submission for Hydro One, which basically Hydro One was denied the right of any landowner to claim compensation for the forced taking of access and its right to Hydro -- and its grant to Hydro One, the intervenors were able to look for guidance and binding authority, to which this Board must have total regard, which is the Supreme Court of Canada.  

I would suggest that the decision of the Supreme Court of Canada will trump anything in law that would rule otherwise.

Mr. Ross has referred to the Manitoba Fisheries case, which is cited at 1979 Supreme Court of Canada, and I do have copies to give to the Board of that case.  I have four copies.  So I have got one for filing and one there just to put it on file, so if you need it to write the decision.

Mr. Justice Ritchie, at page 109 of the Supreme Court of Canada case, which is referenced -- the case pages are different on the form itself.  He indicated this, and quoted it twice in his decision:   
"The recognized rule for the construction of a statute is that unless the words of a statute clearly so demand, a statute is not to be construed so as to take away the property of a subject without compensation." (as read)


At 110 he said this:  

"'On the other hand, there would be the general principle, accepted by the legislature and scrupulously defended by the courts, that title to property or the enjoyment of its possession was not to be compulsorily acquired from a subject unless full compensation was afforded in its place.  Acquisition of title or possession was "taking".'  
"...The vigilance to see that the subject's rights to property were protected, so far as was consistent with the requirements of expropriation of what was previously enjoyed in specie, was regarded as an important guarantee of individual liberty.  It would be a mistake to look on it as representing any conflict between the legislature and the courts.  The principle was, generally speaking, common to both."  

He says at the following page, at the end of this document:

"There is nothing in the Act providing for the taking of such property by the government without compensation, and as I find that there was a taking, it fallows, in my view, that it was unauthorized" -- I emphasize unauthorized -- "having regard to the recognized rule that unless the words of a statute clearly so demand, a statute is not to be construed so as to take away the property without compensation."


We would urge your Board to reflect closely on the words of the Supreme Court, that taking is unauthorized if no compensation is paid, particularly if there is a taking.

In other words, the taking is ineffective unless compensation is coincidentally paid.

A second case which I will leave with the Board, I have one extra copy that I could file with this.  It is a case involving Regina v. Tener, and it is a case -- I might go back and just say the Manitoba Fisheries case, just to tell you what that case was about because it is relevant, is that in the province of Manitoba and elsewhere in Canada, Freshwater Fish Marketing Act was established I think by the government of Canada, imposed in Manitoba and had the effect of making a monopoly of the fishing in Manitoba, which Manitoba Fisheries were rendered -- they were allowed to keep all of their equipment but they weren't allowed to fish again.  And they brought an application in court and sued for compensation for the goodwill that their business had.  They had all of the equipment.  It hadn't gone any where but it was basically worthless because they couldn't fish any more.  They lost until they got to the Supreme Court of Canada and the Supreme Court of Canada basically said that no statute shall be construed as to be taking the right of an individual away without compensation.  That is what that case was about.  

The parallel in this case is quite obvious.  When you take a partial taking, an easement where your right to exclude people is gone and you're going to have somebody on your property for up to two years that you don't want there and the somebody is ordered to be there, lawfully ordered to be there, that is a taking of an interest away from the landowner; and, therefore, that interest is compensable under the giving of the statute and thus the compensation must flow with the order that is made.  

In Regina v. Tener, this case involved mining rights that were given to Tener which had a -- rights which were in a park.  The government, or the park authorities, finally took it upon themselves to exclude, in the end, by rules of entry to exclude their right to come on and access the property.  That went to the Supreme Court of Canada, again.  

That case supported, again, Manitoba Fisheries and I just hand it to you, because it is the two cases, the leading cases in Canada on the rights to compensation for a taking of an interest in land as decided by the Supreme Court of Canada.  They are the leading cases in Canada.  

In the United States, Lucas v. South Carolina Coastal Authority is a leading indicates that was decided in 1992.  In that case, the Supreme Court of the United States was asked to deliberate on a situation in South Carolina whereby a person who had owned two lots, residential properties on the ocean was -- the right to build on them was taken away by an Act of the state of South Carolina.  In that case -- and I am going to leave it with you -- it's here it is underlined in places.  It's the American's leading authority on that, and I don't have anything more than the one case, but it is there.  It's 505 US 1003, 1992, the US Reports.  

In that case, the Supreme Court of United States found in favour of the regulatory taking, that the regulation effectively confiscated all of the rights of value of the property.  They could use it, but you couldn't use it for the purpose it was bought, to build a home or residential accommodation on.   In that case, Justice Scalia of the United States Supreme Court said:   
"Regulations that compel the property owner to suffer a physical invasion of property," dealing with that he said, "in general, (at least in respect to permanent invasions) no matter how minute the intrusion and no matter how weighty the public purpose behind it, we have required compensation."


That case is authority for similar takings where it is partial takings of an interest in land where the title isn't touched but the right to use the title is.  

In summary, if your Board makes an order granting access to Ontario Hydro without ordering compensation payable to each affected landowner we would suggest it would be deemed by any court to be unauthorized order.  Later compensation payment does not serve to legitimize the order retroactively.  

As the Ontario Energy Board Act makes no provision for compensation and does not exclude compensation, the courts and the legislature require that it be paid.  

Now, Mr. Ross has pointed this out but Hydro One itself has not taken the right of the landowner to exclude it from the landowner's property, and it is only the recipient of that right with additional property rights associated with that access to survey and to test and the things that it described that it wanted to do.  It is the OEB which is effecting the taking as a statutory authority lawfully, and as such that taking is governed by the provisions of the Expropriation Act, not by the OEB Act.  Because the only thing that triggers an expropriation under the OEB Act is in respect of an application made by a person seeking leave to construct.  

I suggest that this Board is not such a person.  So if it is an expropriation, it is governed by the Expropriation Act, not the authority of the expropriations as contemplated under the OEB Act.  

Before I make submissions to you on what the amount of access compensation entitlement ought to be - and I will be providing that to you - I wish to set out for you, I think it is important, the real reasons why Hydro One is so desperate to complete this transmission line before December of 2001 (sic) and why it has changed its approach to dealing with landowners and property rights which affects every landowner of the 400 to 450 land units between Bruce and Milton.  

Your Board accepted as an exhibit yesterday the report of April 2007 of the Auditor General of Ontario and the refurbishment agreement made between Bruce Power and signed by the Ontario Power Authority under the direction of the Minister of Energy.  It was signed on October 17th, 2005.  

As the report is evidence, your Board may have regard to it give it and the facts therein whatever weight you wish.   

Under that agreement, the province won a commitment from Bruce Power to invest two-and-a-half billion dollars of its own private monies to recommission units 1 and 2 at Bruce A.  Each, in the statement -- in the document, the statement is made that each of the units have a net generating capacity of 669 megawatts per hour.  That means for the two units that are built, that's 1538 megawatts per hour.  

In return for that financial commitment, which is made by a private concern, the government agreed that Bruce Power would have a price guarantee, a support guarantee of 63 cents per kilowatt hour or $63 per megawatt hour.  The transmission capacity needed to carry such 1538 megawatts per hour of generating capacity is a 500 kV line.  That is what this line is about.  

However, the agreement, in the agreement, there is a deemed generation provision which the Auditor General describes on page 26 of its report.  And in that report, the Auditor General makes this statement:  
"There is a 'deemed-generation provision' in the agreement that allows Bruce Power and Bruce A LP to get paid without generating electricity.  Specifically, if a lack of transmission capacity to support the flow of electricity from Bruce plants to power grid prevents the plants from generating electricity, the OPA will have to pay Bruce Power and Bruce A LP the market price for electricity it would otherwise have generated...  However, Bruce is to receive the full market price for any lost production caused by insufficient transmission capacity."


That is the reason why the there is such an extreme concern on deadline.  That means if there is no transmission ability in place by December of 2011, the Ontario Power Authority, which is a collection of all of the power distributors of Ontario -- of which Hydro One is probably the most major distributor of power in Ontario, it builds lines and runs the electrical highway, but it also is a reseller of power that it receives through the OPA.  So as one of the distributors it must pay the equivalent amount of money to Bruce Power, notwithstanding that no power is being generated.  

Now, I wish to hand out a submission -- well, it's my submission, a document which I prepared which makes it easily understood and I can -- could you do that.  The document, there is enough copies for all of the Board Members and the member, Mr. Millar.  The deemed generation, if you go to page 2 --  

MS. NOWINA:  Can you describe the document, Mr. Fallis.


MR. FALLIS:  Yes.  The document is a calculation that basically allows the -- where the source of the information is within the auditor's report and allows a calculation to be made of what 63 cents a kilowatt hour or $63 a megawatt hour means to the power production from the Bruce.

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I am not sure if there are any objections, but if this is to be referred to, we should probably give it an exhibit number.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes, Mr. Millar, we will.

MR. MILLAR:  That will be Exhibit K2.1.  It is the document from Mr. Fallis entitled, "Calculations of deemed generation payment provisions by OPA to Bruce Power and Bruce A LP".
EXHIBIT NO. K2.1:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "CALCULATIONS OF DEEMED GENERATION PAYMENT PROVISIONS BY OPA TO BRUCE POWER AND BRUCE A LP"

MR. FALLIS:  I stand corrected on a mistake I made.  The deadline is December 2011, not 2001.  I made that error.

From the report, the proposed kV transmission line is needed to transmit electrical power to be generated from Bruce 1 and 2 at Bruce A nuclear facility at the Bruce when they come on stream in 2011.  That is at page 12 of the auditor's report.

The Ontario Power Authority, on behalf of the government of Ontario, agreed to provide a price security to Bruce Power of the 6.3 cents per kilowatt hour or $63 per megawatt hour effective when those units are ready to deliver power after December 2011.  That's at page 6 and 7 of the report.

The report, I indicated, indicated that Bruce A has a net generating capacity of 669 megawatts per hour for each unit of the four units at Bruce A when it comes on stream; and that units 1 and 2 of Bruce A, for which the 500 kV transmission line is proposed to be constructed by Ontario Hydro together have a maximum net generating capacity of 1,538 megawatts.

Now, the deemed generation payments.  If the power is not capable of being transported, 1,538 megawatts per hour at $63 per megawatt generates a payment requirement per hour of $96,894 per hour to Bruce Power.  Expressed in a day, that deemed generation payment will be $2,325,456 a day.  Weekly it is $16,275,192 a day.  Monthly, it is $70,525,831 per month.  And yearly, it is $848,791,440 per year.  That is on a yearly basis.  

So they're all set there.  It is just a matter of arithmetic calculations.  That is the cost that will be borne by every consumer somehow in Ontario, if the deadline is missed, and it shouldn't be missed.

One concern that I expressed, and it is mentioned here, that the application was made on March 29th, 2007 by Ontario Hydro -- or Hydro One, excuse me -- to this Board for leave to construct.  The order, the agreement itself, which the Minister of Energy directed OPA to sign, was made one year, five months, 12 days prior to that on October 17th, 2005.

Just that delay can be measured in megawatt hours and deemed generation payments.  If you add those numbers up, one year, five months and 12 days, that is $1,229,325,962, a rounded figure of $1.3 billion.

That is a figure that is there.  Obviously Hydro One is concerned about the -- getting to that deadline, because if it misses it, it is extremely costly for everybody, including the consumers of the province of Ontario.

The problem is it seems to suggest that it is going to fall on the backs of 450 landowners, as if they have done something wrong.  I don't think they have.

If there is, if this process had started a year and a half ago, we wouldn't be under the present time pressures.  

We submit that the focus to amend the Ontario Energy Board Act in 2006 certainly did not come about by any landowner in Ontario, but, rather, came about at the initiative of the only transporter of power in Ontario, big transporter, Hydro One, who had to lobby the government to make the amendment to allow for the universal advance access to transmission projects with OEB approval.

Unfortunately for Hydro One, the process has backfired, as the process is forcing the OEB to now expropriate certain property rights of landowners at its own expense to accommodate Hydro One.

If the Board makes the order under section 98(1.1) as requested, there is a very real risk that any objecting landowner may initiate a court application for a determination that this process constitutes an expropriation within the meaning of the Expropriation Act entitling such an owner to argue all the benefits of that Act, including right to argue that legal regard must be held by the inquiry officer appointed thereunder for alternative routes, as the Court of Appeal of Ontario has determined in Karn v. Ontario Hydro.  That must be considered.  That case has been filed with this Board.  

The timelines for such an application to a court would run from four to six months without any appeal therefrom.  And if successful, the expropriation process could run for at least that additional amount of time, as well.

That would be, indeed, unfortunate for the objectives of Hydro One, as it would be thrown off its schedule and could miss the December 2011 deadline and force a triggering of the deemed generation clause.

Under section 1.1 (sic) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, the Board is required to be guided by the following objectives, and I have read these in other cases, expropriation cases, that the Board has stated.  The one most recently is the Toyota plant.  Those same objectives were stated there again.

The guiding objectives are:  One, to protect the interest of consumers with respect to prices and adequacy, reliability and quality of electrical service; two, to promote economic efficiency and cost-effectiveness in the generation, distribution, sale and demand management of electricity and to facilitate the maintenance of a financially viable electricity industry.

We submit that the property rights of 450 landowners are important and must be respected not only by Hydro One, but also by this Board.

This Board is being asked to order access, which is described by Hydro One as early access, to a route which is nothing more than a glint in the eye of its intended birth mother, Hydro One.  The route is only proposed and its final location is not yet determined.

There has been no attempt to acquire any of the lands by the expropriation process, and it is merely a proposal.  

For this Board to disregard the rights of property owners to request public consideration for access payment entitlements for early access and to openly discuss alternate routes seriously risks court challenges and inherent time delays.

We have set out above what the cost payments would be to consumers if the deemed generation payments are required to be made.

This Board, therefore, has the opportunity to help Hydro One accomplish its tasks in time.  It should strongly recommend to Hydro One that it take immediate initiatives to make access settlement payments to landowners in accordance with guidelines that we established, and I am going to outline those momentarily.

It should also strongly recommend that it engage landowners in meaningful discussions about potential alternate route changes with a view to accommodating, where possible, such mutually agreeable changes.  Working with the people that are giving you the land or supplying the land is much better than working against them.  You get a lot further with honey than you do with vinegar.  And to take a 180-foot strip by vinegar out of the -- by -- without paying any money, and then having to negotiate with the same people for access to get to that strip seems at cross-purposes.

So I would suggest that this Board should take the initiative to tell Hydro One that it should negotiate the access payments and it should negotiate the land rights so that it can meet the deadlines, because negotiations will prove to be fruitful if they're properly entertained.

Hydro One, and Ontario Hydro before it, have had a long history of experience in doing that, and this process is not kind to the property rights of owners of this province.

Now, I have a draft order that I have prepared that I wish to...  Where did I put that?

 May I...

MS. NOWINA:  Take your time, Mr. Fallis.  


MR. FALLIS:  Well I am going to ask, if I might, I have a –- let me see.  I will take another look through here.  Could I have the indulgence the Board for five minutes, just to find it, because if is important.  It is my submission. 


MS. NOWINA:  Yes, you may.  We will just wait, Mr. Fallis.  


MR. FALLIS:  All right.  At the very worst I have it on my computer here and I could print it, but then I would have to ask for a 15-minute delay.  


Madam Chair, if I could ask the Board for an early morning recess at this point.  I am not far from the ending but I do want to have it to make my submission, and for some reason it is not in my material but I can print it off my computer.  It is there. 


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Mr. Fallis, we will take ten minutes. 


MR. FALLIS:  Thank you.  


--- Recess taken at 10:24 a.m. 


--- On resuming at 10:40 a.m.

MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  Mr. Fallis, are you ready to resume? 

Submissions by Mr. Fallis (Continued):


MR. FALLIS:  I am.  I must indicate, Madam Chair, that I'm amazed that when I lose things, as I'm getting older, and I do lose things, how technically proficient I was in ten minutes with the help of Mr. Ross to find something. 

MS. NOWINA:  I'm finding that as well, Mr. Fallis. 

MR. FALLIS:  Yes, it's another miracle on Bay Street, I guess.  Anyway the order that I have provided -- 

MR. MILLAR:  I haven't distributed it yet.  Madam Chair, we will call this, subject to any objections, Exhibit K2.2. 
EXHIBIT NO. K2.2:  DRAFT ORDER SOUGHT BY INTERVENORS REPRESENTED BY BOTH FALLIS AND ROSS

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  

MR. MILLAR:  It is a draft order sought by the intervenors represented by both Fallis and Ross.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  We have it.  Go ahead, Mr. Fallis.  

MR. FALLIS:  It indicates in this order that I am seeking is one which I would invite the Board to seriously consider as part of the overall order package it might make.  I will just read it to you:  
"It is ordered that Hydro One Networks shall, prior to exercising any access right ordered hereunder, offer to and pay to all co-operating landowners an 'access settlement sum', and with whom an 'access settlement agreement' is agreed upon and executed and which agreement may also provide for a mutually agreeable access by Hydro One Networks to the Corridor Lands over adjacent lands of any Landowner(s) on terms mutually otherwise agreeable to Hydro One Networks and such Landowner(s), such sum to be paid to the Landowner(s) immediately upon execution of such agreement and which access sum shall be calculated as follows:  
a) a minimum payment of $2500 regardless of the land area or use;  
b)  in respect to improved lands, or improved land with an existing dwelling, house or part thereof, and which is located on any part of the Corridor Lands, the sum of $5,000;
c) in respect of any improved lands, which contain a commercial, industrial, institutional or agricultural structure or part thereof, and which is located on any part of the Corridor, the sum of $6,000;  
d) in respect to any other lands on which there are no improvements for which a building permit would now otherwise be required to so construct, the sum of $1,500 an acre for each acre, or part thereof, of land holdings within the Corridor, where the Corridor does not diagonally cross the width of the land holding of the Landowner.  
e)  in respect of any other lands of which there are no improvements for which a building permit would now otherwise be required to so construct, the sum of $3,000 an acre for each acre, or part thereof, of land holdings within the Corridor where the Corridor does diagonally cross the width of the landholding of the Landowner." 

The second part of the order is that: 

"It is ordered that in the event that Hydro One Networks Inc. is unable to negotiate and have executed an 'access settlement agreement' with the Landowner within 30 days after a written draft 'access settlement agreement' is prepared by Hydro One Networks Inc. and presented to each Landowner within the Corridor, accompanied by a summary of the calculations of entitlement for to the due execution of the 'access settlement agreement', then Hydro One shall immediately thereafter pay to such landowner the sum of $2,000 regardless, and shall be at liberty to forthwith exercise its rights under this Interim Order in accordance with the conditions established herein by this Board, to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of the work.  
3:  It is ordered that Hydro One Networks shall, in addition to any payments made under the early access agreements thereof negotiated with any Landowner, or payments made in lieu thereof, if no early access agreement is made, pay the compensation to the Landowner or to any tenant of the Landowner for any damage caused to the property for injurious affection suffered by any Landowner or Tenant of such Landowner during the exercise of access rights granted hereunder, whether on the Corridor, or off the Corridor, under an access settlement agreement made with any Landowner.  
4:  It is ordered that this Application shall be adjourned for 60 to 90 days to be brought back at the request of Hydro One, if so required, upon seven days' written notice for such relief as it may then so request."


Now, with respect to the cost that this will generate, I have done a calculation, which is a two-part calculation.  One is, first of all, the calculation of the land area that this represents.  And I will pass that out to Mr. Millar for numbering and then on to the Board.  

MR. MILLAR:  Exhibit K2.3, Madam Chair.  
EXHIBIT NO. K2.3:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "CALCULATION OF LAND AREA"  

MR. MILLAR:  It is entitled:  "Calculation of land area."


MR. FALLIS:  Madam Chair, the purpose of this is to try to figure out the amount of acreage that encompasses the entirety of the proposed ultimate taking.  The total estimated length of the line, as described in the Board's 
-- material filed with the Board is 180 kilometres which is 112.5 miles.  The total estimated width of the corridor for the proposed transmission line ranges between 175 to 200 feet.  For conservative purposes, we have used 180 feet which is probably very conservative, which is 54.64 metres.  

The land area of corridor per linear mile or kilometre is 21.63 acres per mile, or 8.794 hectares per kilometre.  The land area of the entire corridor for the 180 kilometres or the 112 miles is 991.5 hectares or 2450 acres.  So we're talking 2500 acres, round figures, for all intents and purposes.


I would -- so that is the amount of land area overall that we're talking about.


I also have another document which I had prepared which allow you to understand how it would be, what the costs would be overall and I have that to provide to the Board and to Mr. Millar.


MR. MILLAR:  Exhibit K2.4, Madam Chair, and it is entitled:   Proposal to Ontario Energy Board for access payment structure.  
EXHIBIT NO. K2.4:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "PROPOSAL TO ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD FOR ACCESS PAYMENT STRUCTURE"

MR. FALLIS:  The document I will read, and I'll explain it as I go.  The landowners have retained Fallis & McMillan, and Ross & Ross law firms to intervene and act on their behalf, propose to the Ontario Energy Board it should set an access compensation allowance payable to all of the 400 to 450 land unit owners on a land-unit basis, who own land over which the proposed electrical transmission line is contemplated to be constructed for the Bruce to Milton for the taking of access rights from each of those landowners and the giving of those rights to Hydro One for a period of two years as is requested by Hydro One.  

Now, I have already filed the calculations which really form part of this, but -- so you already have that in a previous exhibit.


These intervenors propose that the Board should make a determination that the following amounts should be paid to each land unit which is contemplated for easement acquisition by Hydro One to gain two years' access, two years of access rights to the property of each landowner.  

Now, just realizing that in the configuration, that the distance from the Bruce to Colbeck junction which is near Grand Valley is approximately two-thirds of the entire length of the line and for the predominant part crosses every property diagonally across, across the property on the diagonal.  It did that in the 1970s when it did the 500 kV line there, and there was certainly an allowance at every instance for the additional injurious affection, additional taking and damage that was caused to each landowner at that point in time, because of the fact of the disruptive nature of the diagonal crossing, which didn't parallel or go beside fence lines and so forth.  It went across, diagonally across, fields.

So, in effect, it has been divided into two parts, one from Colbeck to Milton, and then one from Bruce to Colbeck.  So for each one acre of land only or part thereof proposed for ultimate acquisition by Hydro One, the sum of $1,500, and with respect to the land from Colbeck or the -- to Milton, where the proposed transmission corridor has no diagonal crossings or predominance thereof, be calculated as two-thirds of the total acreage of 2,450 -- or one-third of the total acreage of 2,450 acres.  That is 816.66 acres, and at $1,500 dollars an acre, that represents $1.225 million that would be paid to the landowners along that section.

The additional part-acres we have estimated, and it's an estimate only.  They're part-acres in that section, and we have -- we're estimating that every landowner will have part-acres predominantly, so that there would be one-third of the 400 acres.  So it would have part-acres.  Therefore, at $1,500 there would be an additional $200,000 for that section.

For the land from Bruce to Colbeck, where the proposed corridor has a predominance of continuous diagonal crossings over the width of the landholdings of landowners therein, an enhanced doubling of the $1,500 dollars per acre to $3,000 an acre.  

It must be remembered that the acreage isn't large and the crossing -- in longitude it is, but it is not a long crossing, but it is most disruptive to anybody using the land, because it diagonally crosses your fields, and if you're using them for agricultural purposes, it is very severe in its interruption of that use.

We calculate that there are 1,633 acres.  That is two-thirds of the 2,450 acres, and that $3,000 an acre, that amounts to $4.9 million.

The part-acres that we calculate for the same thing, being 267 part-acres of the 400 part-acres, it would be $801,000, not knowing for sure, because Hydro One refused to disclose this information, which I would think should be very transparent, in any event, particularly when they have now agreed to provide all of the maps showing the buildings on it, but they refused to disclose either the number or names of the buildings -- the owners of buildings.  

We have estimated 25 residential buildings are targeted for lying within the land and that there are 15 non-residential buildings.  We might be wrong, but to the extent that there are 25, the residential, the number would be $125,000 of additional payment to those 25.

For the non-residential buildings, it is $6,000 a building, of which there are some barns and there are some commercial premises that are affected.  That would be $90,000.

Then as the minimum settlement allowance is $2,500, and some properties are residential only, or acreage only, where there is no substantial acreage -- it may be a residential lot for development.  We are just saying that they estimate those at 100, and that would be $150,000, and that would cover the completion of all of the categories of lands and uses that would be covered.  The total payment would come to $7,491,000; call it $7.5 million by estimates, on a conservative width of 180 feet wide by the full length of the line.

So, in effect, what we're saying is that is a figure that I believe that this Board could recommend to Hydro to be universally applied to all of its takings across the entirety of the spectrum of the taking for the access it requires, and recommend to it that that is a figure that it go forward and seek to pay to these landowners in return for access-right agreement for the two years that it requires.

If you look at the order, in the event -- that's paragraph 2 of the order -- that in the event that someone is to refuse it, then the order shall reduce itself to $2,000, and therefore that owner would be financially disadvantaged by not accepting the greater and more generous figure that would otherwise be out there.

So I think that it provides a mechanism for a scheme of settlement payments for the early access that is required.

When you compare this access, the payments, with the cost of the deemed generation -- and somebody from the Board Staff corrected me on one thing this morning.  I said 63 cents per kilowatt hour.  It was 6.3 cents per kilowatt hour.  

I stand corrected.  Wherever I have said that, I would substitute that as the amount -- is that at a deemed generation payment, which is in excess of $2 million a day, four days of deemed generation payments would more than cover the payments that are being made now, to afford Hydro One the desire it has to seek early information about what is on the land that they're attempting to acquire for easement purposes.

Free-ride days are over.  We pay to park at hospitals.  We pay to park everywhere.  And why should a public authority, who has been charging a lot of money for the use of the power, get a free ride on the backs of 450 people, when the province and all of the citizens of this province benefit by the information it is going to gain?

This isn't charity.  This is property rights that we're talking about, and property rights must be respected, and, as the Supreme Court of Canada has indicated, that if you are going to take, as you may take or may -- if there is a taking that is being done or contemplated to be done, compensation must accompany that taking.

In summary, then, I would submit the following.  The Minister of Energy, the Ontario Power Authority and Hydro One must assume full responsibility for the delay of over 17 months in initiating this project, which delay, if measured in deemed generation dollars, approaches $1.3 billion.

Two, the landowners have done nothing wrong.  In the Bruce-to-Colbeck area, they have served their -- the landowners there, and their parties before them, have now suffered two sets of towers, and they're being asked to set a third line on their property.  That's a big, big thing that anybody should have to suffer and, if it is to be suffered, it should be suffered with respect, with dignity and with payment.

The landowners fairly seek compensation for two years' access rights being requested of your Board by Hydro One and that they will impliedly be forced to tolerate if this Board makes such an order; additionally, also losing the property right to exclude Hydro One from their lands.

The Supreme Court of Canada states that any order that takes property rights away from a person is unauthorized unless that person is compensated.

The payments that we propose in the schedule are fair.  And the access benefit to Hydro One is very substantial.  It cannot proceed in this hearing, as it says, without this information.

The risks inherent with delay by court applications and formal expropriation proceedings should be avoided by all parties by insisting upon the respect by Hydro One of the full property rights of all landowners, including the rights of all landowners to meet with them and discuss and have the opportunity to seriously discuss alternate routes.  Failure to do so will risk triggering the deemed generation charges, which will be a cost to all of the consumers of Ontario.

I would therefore conclude by saying that this is an opportunity that is now available to this Board to address the very problems of going forward with the manner in which Hydro One has intended to proceed, because if the expropriation is triggered and somebody takes up the challenge and says, I do not agree with the process that' is going forward, that is a time delay, and that time delay is going to cost the consumers of Ontario dearly and it is not the fault of the landowners.  It is the fault of the parties coming so late to the table to ask for this relief.  

So I would urge this Board to urge Hydro One to try, to encourage discussion with landowners on alternate routes.  There may be only a few that need to be adjusted.  There is an obvious one around Hanover.  There are several other obvious ones in the line.  Some of those would be content for buyouts, and the ones that are along the line where there is no property, a lot of people are just concerned about the amount of compensation is.  It may not be that big a number.  

But don't lose the opportunity, for the sake of the rights you have gained under the OEB Act, to get early access.  That's false economy.  And I would urge this Board to implore Hydro One to take that step of meeting with people and finding out what they are -- want to do.  

I think what the orders that are sought, as far as the -- if orders are granted, the conditions, be it voluntary, attached to an agreement or be ordered by the Board, I think, I don't have any problem with what has been provided.  

I think that the addition of the compensation component of the order is mandatory, and to do justice to the system of justice, this Board must order compensation, if it does make the order; but preferably it would recommend to Hydro that it be the compensation that it offer so that it, the Board is not put in the position of being challenged as to whether it has done is in fact an expropriation.  Because, clearly, Hydro One has not expropriated anything.  They haven't asked the owners, they just asked you.  They're asking people for permission.  When you make that order -- if you make that order granting permission, consider whether you are actually doing the actual expropriation for Hydro and the consequences that may flow from it.  

Those are my submissions.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Fallis.  

MR. ROSS:  Madam Chair, if it is not already eminently clear, we adopt the submissions of Mr. Fallis as well as his proposed draft order.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Ross.  We have a couple of questions for Mr. Fallis.  Mr. Rupert.  

QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD: 

MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Fallis, on the urgency question.  You have stated your position that the required date for this line is a function of generation contracts and other things with the Bruce.  

But I don't hear you disputing that there is, in fact, an urgency.  First of all, I wanted to ask you that.  

As I heard, you seemed to be pointing to the circumstances that gave rise to the urgency in your view as opposed to whether or not there is an urgency here.  

First of all, my question:  Do you agree or disagree that there is some urgency or need to get on with this project?  

MR. FALLIS:  I don't think any of our clients disagree with the concept that there needs to be more transmission capability from the Bruce area.  I don't think there is any doubt about that.  Whether you describe it as urgent or need, I don't know.


The application itself was framed solely with respect to the Bruce when the Motions Day, the OPA counsel got up and indicated all of the problems with bottle-up power, with the wind power thing which was in any of the package of material that I read, and so there is a need to move generated power out of its sources.  

Whether it is urgent or whether it is needed, urgency is -- I think the urgency is dictated by a dollar consequence to the OPA and to Hydro.  The need is by the consumers of the province of Ontario because we’re on a grid.  Power comes across from the States.  It comes from other places.  We don't have to be the only provider of power.  

I don't think it is urgent.  I think it is needed.  I think the urgent part of it is to keep the OPA, the government of Ontario from having to suffer this huge financial penalty.  That is the urgency.  

MR. RUPERT:  You have given us these calculations, I guess, starting with your numbers on the, from the Bruce agreement and then other things.  

I am trying to understand, though, the connection between your compensation and those calculations.  In an ordinary case of -- if expropriation, even, you mentioned expropriation a lot.  Would those kinds of calculations i.e., financial effects for a proponent or a party be relevant to the question of compensation?  You seem to be tying them somehow together saying there is a lot of money in your one calculation, therefore landowners deserve a lot of money. 

MR. FALLIS:  You're referring to the diagonal crossings? 

MR. RUPERT:  Just your whole approach of linking the two.  I'm trying to understand what it is about the dollar amounts that you have laid out in the Bruce agreement that is relevant to the question of compensating people for loss of property rights. 

MR. FALLIS:  I am not trying to draw an equation.  All I'm trying to say is that the overall cost of $7.5 million, if those are the figures that are globally used to satisfy that formula, all I'm saying is express it in terms of deemed generation dollars, it is four days of generation for Ontario.  That is pretty small pickings for the province to pay for the privilege of having a suitable power source here.


The amount itself is -- you know, we're talking lands where there may be four acres or three acres in farm lands, and diagonal crossings you may have 10 or 12 that, on a 100-acre farm that’s 1300-feet wide, 200 feet of which is taken up by that is almost a fifth, you may have 20 acres in a longitudinal that's taken by a taking -- and they're coming in to do it and using that right for two years.  It isn't just a one-time in and out.  They want to have that for two years and can do anything in that two-year period.  

So I think it is measured over the time that Hydro One has it and it is also measured in terms of the right that has been granted, and I think if you set it out as a formula, it doesn't get into negotiations, because Hydro One can say, this is what the Board is authorizing us to do, so it is universally applicable to everyone without having to individually negotiate a rate.  That is the beauty of it.  

MR. RUPERT:  The question on your interpretation of section 98.  As is pointed out, you know, the section does not talk about compensation for access but also as you say it doesn't prohibit compensation for access.  

But it does have a subsection 2, 98(2), which deals specifically with damages and lays out the fact that if there is not agreement between the parties, then it moves on to section 100 which goes to the Expropriation Act and the OMB. 

Now, the fact that this section included just a description of compensation in respect only of damages and says nothing more; how do you interpret the section then?  Under your view, does the fact that only one thing is mentioned not conflict with your view that compensation is required for the whole of the order as opposed to -- excuse me, compensation be required for access as opposed to just damages?  

 Why, in your view, did the legislature focus only on damages and mention only damages when it comes to compensation? 

MR. FALLIS:  Well, first of all, it is two entirely different matters.  One is the damage resulting from the use and occupation of the property.  That is the right that is already granted.  

The compensation that is payable, according to the Supreme Court of Canada, is for the taking of the right to access.  You have acquired, taken something away from the landowner.  They are a free tenant for two years, or whatever term this Board sets, without paying rent.  And for the use of that right is what the compensation is about.  It is the taking of rights.  Anything that happens as a consequence of the taking of rights has its own set of measured compensable recovery.  

If, for example, there is tile-drainage damage, or if there is -- they have altered the land and drilled a hole and go through a pipeline or something like that unwittingly, Union Gas or whatever and cause all kinds of secondary damages, those are the damages that we're talking about.  It is nothing to do with the taking -- 

MR. RUPERT:  I appreciate that.  Maybe I will put my question more clearly.  

If subsection 2 did not exist, and this section was silent on the question of damages, under your reading of the thing, then, would, in fact, a landowner have any right for compensation for damages if the section wasn't there?  

MR. FALLIS:  Absolutely.  Because that is a common law.  I don't think that adds anything.  It is a restatement of common law. 

MR. RUPERT:  That's my conflict.  Why, in your view, does the legislature feel compelled to restate something that is common law in this section, but failed to restate the other issue which you referred to which is paying for compensation for taking of a right?  Why one and not the other?  

MR. FALLIS:  Well, I don't know that it did address that.  I don't think it did, because damages is certainly something -- damages is not a word that is associated with property rights.


It's nothing to do with property rights.  It is for injury that is suffered to property, but it's nothing to do with the rights of property, other than the fact that who may have the right to recover the damages, I would suggest.


It could be a tenant.  It isn't even the owner.  It could be the tenant's crops that are damaged, or the cattle get out and he loses all of his animals on the road because somebody has left the gate open.  Those are damages to personal property as opposed to the rights that they're taking at the outset.


The money is earned the day the order is made.  Damages are a consequence of some misuse of -- by inadvertence or by advertence, or whatever, or by wilful events that are consequential.  I don't think you can draw an equation.


You know, it's like beautiful sunsets.  How can you say there isn't a God?  They may be in the same framework, but I don't think it is in the same spirit of what we're talking about here.  I think it is completely different.


MR. RUPERT:  I understand there is a difference in the nature of the two things.  It is just that the legislature felt compelled to stress, for whatever reason, for greater certainty, I guess in your view damages, but failed to stress for greater certainty what you describe or interpret as the inherent right to compensation in this area.  So that's my only question.


MR. FALLIS:  I don't think it failed to stress it.  It didn't say anything at all about compensation.


MR. RUPERT:  One last quick one, just so I understand the structure of your proposed order.


You end this on page 3 - this is Exhibit K2.2 - and said:

"This application shall be adjourned for 60 to 90 days and brought back."


I wasn't sure I understood that paragraph in the context of paragraph 2, which sort of said if people won't accept the offer, then Hydro One will proceed on to -- under this interim order.


MR. FALLIS:  Well, the interim order would be -- we would probably have to come back to deal with that issue because of the fact that if this order doesn't order the entry and it failed to negotiate, I would suggest Ontario Hydro would be back within the 60 to 90 days requesting some other specific relief of you.


MR. RUPERT:  That is the intent?


MR. FALLIS:  That is the intent of it.  Bottom line is if it is universally applicable to everyone and somebody doesn't take advantage of it, there's got to be -- you know, they have to be paid, but it's not as enhanced.


I would make a comment on the choice of amounts.  This is the day and age where you have to show good faith.  And Hydro can show good faith.  It can show a change of its position.  Hydro One can show a change of its position now by saying, We're going to do this.  


It will be a lot easier to negotiate, as I said before, with honey than with vinegar, because in all of these cases, in most of these cases on the diagonal crossings in particular, they are going to have to ask these very same people to get on their property, because, practically speaking, unless they try to fly in with a helicopter, which will have its own problems because these big towers are beside it, how are they going to get there in many instances?  Because it is land locked.  It is way in the back of concessions and diagonal crossings going through bush and bogs and rivers.  


As the gentleman from Toad Hill or whatever said yesterday, they've got problems with trying to build on these places and it is -- so they need the cooperation of the landowner.  


And this would certainly generate a huge -- take it as an opportunity to show that we have made a change.  We're going to change our horse and stride and come out riding high, rather than -- and err in the amount, in the higher amount.  Err in favour of the landowner rather than trying to discourage it.  


I think you would buy a lot of cooperation and I think, as a marketing practice, it would be a wonderful way to go forward for Hydro.  I think if it does that, keeps that approach up, has a dialogue with them, it can achieve much more than -- and get this line done probably faster than the timelines it has set for itself under the process it is under right now.


MR. RUPERT:  Okay, thank you.


Procedural Matters:


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Fallis.  Before we continue, I would like to stop and consider our schedule.  I wonder if Mr. Wellenreiter and Mr. McMeeken could give me estimates of how long they think their argument would take.


MR. WELLENREITER:  I expect to be probably five, 10 minutes.  Not very long.  I have a couple of important points that I feel I need to make.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.


MR. McMEEKEN:  Perhaps 10 to 15 minutes.  I would lean more towards the ten-minute mark.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. Nettleton, how much time will you need to prepare your reply argument?  We will take a break for that.


MR. NETTLETON:  Not long at all, Madam Chair.  A normal break of 15, 20 minutes would be sufficient.


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  How long do you think you will take for your reply argument?


MR. NETTLETON:  I am going to estimate, but don't hold me to it, approximately 30 minutes.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  I understand from Board Staff that we have one person who has requested to make an oral comment.


MR. MILLAR:  I think that's right, Madam Chair.  I personally -- it's Mr. Eschlboeck, I understand, who I think is standing.  Did you want a time estimate from him, Madam Chair?


MS. NOWINA:  Would ten to 15 minutes be all right for you, sir?


MR. ESCHLBOECK:  That's fine.


MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you.  We'll go ahead with Mr. Wellenreiter and Mr. McMeeken at this point.  Then we will take a short break for you to prepare, Mr. Nettleton --


MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  -- and hear your argument.  Mr. Wellenreiter.


Submissions by Mr. Wellenreiter:

MR. WELLENREITER:  Thank you, Madam Chair and Board Members.  To begin, many of the points have already been covered in the earlier submissions.  We adopt the submissions of Mr. Millar, in particular, with regard to the issue of the oral or written notice.  We agree with his submissions in that regard.


We adopt the submissions of Mr. Ross and Mr. Fallis, as well, particularly with regard to the green zone or the green strip lands.  We feel that any order should only deal with access related on those green-zone lands or green strip of lands.


Yesterday our client went home from these hearings and received a letter in the mail from Hydro One, and I have only received it today, so I only have a couple of copies that he brought with him.  I would like to enter it into evidence and present it to the Board.  I have three copies and the one copy that I will use.


I would like to refer to it as I'm going through the next part of my submissions.


MS. NOWINA:  All right, Mr. Wellenreiter.


MR. WELLENREITER:  Thank you.


Just to begin, it is a letter from John Sheehan, who is a property agent of Hydro One Networks.  It is to Heinrich Eschlboeck.  It is dated July 26th, 2007, and I will stop there until --


MR. MILLAR:  Yes, Madam Chair, we will call that Exhibit K2.5.  This is the letter dated July 26th to Mr. Eschlboeck.  We are having some additional copies made right now, but I will bring one copy up for you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

EXHIBIT NO. K2.5:  LETTER DATED JULY 26, 2007 TO MR. ESCHLBOECK FROM MR. SHEEHAN, HYDRO ONE NETWORKS


MR. WELLENREITER:  In reviewing the letter, it states:  

"Dear Mr. Eschlboeck:  

The purpose of this letter is to thank you for meeting with me on July 16th, 2007, and to confirm our discussion.  

It was agreed that Hydro One Networks, Inc., (HONI) will proceed with the market value appraisal of the easement required on your property.  HONI has hired an independent accredited appraisal firm, Metrix Realty Group, to complete the appraisal work, and they will contact you to arrange for an appointment to inspect your property."


First, Mr. Eschlboeck never agreed to this.  I would just like to state that for the record.  I will continue on:

"You also provided approval for HONI and/or its consultants, contractors to enter upon the property for the purposes of conducting legal and engineering surveys, soil testing, biological, environmental and archeological investigations.  Each of these operations will provide you with notification before entering on your property."


Again, Mr. Eschlboeck did not agree to this.

"HONI agrees to take all reasonable care in the conduct of this work and will compensate you for any damage to your property caused by this work.  HONI agrees to indemnify and save you harmless from all claims for any property damage or personal injury arising out of HONI's actions in connection with this work.

I have passed your concerns and questions from our meeting on to HONI and will get back to you when I have this information."


Now, it is a little disconcerting that the purpose of the meeting, to discuss Mr. Eschlboeck's concerns and questions, are not in fact listed on this letter, but agreements which he did not enter into, are.


With respect to Mr. Eschlboeck's worries and concerns, we raise the following points and submit and request that the Board consider them:  A right to real and meaningful say in the location of the structures and towers that are placed on his property; that is, the location of these towers that interferes the least or not at all with his farming operations.  There are currently other towers on the property.  To line-up the new tower, towers with these existing towers would be a big, an important factor in providing the least interference with his current operations, farming operations. 


To add new structures that are not in line would cause him inconvenience, would cause disruption of his activities, cause him to double up on his farming activities.  And he is using large machinery here, not just a small tractor, but large farm equipment, so that the location is a very real and important issue to him, in terms of how he is able to carry on with his work and farming operations.  


I have already addressed the written and oral notice.  I think Mr. Millar covered it well, and we will leave it with our adoption of his submissions there.  


With respect to access, we also adopt those submissions made by Mr. Fallis and Mr. Ross.  There has to be meaningful and real discussions as to the access to property.  If it's only along the green zone that is one thing, but if it is coming in on another point, it has to take real consideration into -- take into real consideration where the access is and compensate.  


I think that some of the responses that we heard yesterday were disconcerting.  I heard several answers from the witnesses where they said, "We will deal with it," when pressed on it with questions related to access or if there is a dispute as to the location of access.  "We will deal with it."  I don't think that gives any comfort to the landowner.  


It doesn't give a resolution.  It doesn't tell them how to deal with things.  


Most of all, we're asking the Board that there be fair and just compensation to the landowners for the temporary taking or the interim easement that's being proposed here, for the use and interruption of use of their land during what has been termed as an interim-access or early-access period.  


Again, we really urge the Board to consider a fair and reasonable compensation for the infringement of property rights and fairness as to the adjustment of rights and detailed conditions that set out explicitly guidelines, so that there is not the vagueness that is apparent.  


It does feel like, when I look at this letter that was written to Mr. Eschlboeck, and I have heard the submissions and testimony of the witnesses, that the left hand does not know what the right hand is doing.  That comes across and we would like that to be addressed and covered off.  


Finally, we do respectfully request costs in this on behalf of our client, and thank you for your time.  


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Wellenreiter.  Mr. McMeeken.



SUBMISSIONS BY MR. McMEEKEN:


MR. McMEEKEN:  Good morning, Board Members.  I wish to thank you on behalf of myself and my clients for giving us this opportunity to be heard on this important application.  


Prior to beginning with my submissions, I just wish to make a couple of comments, if I can.  First of all, I wish, if it is not too offensive to Mr. Ross and to Mr. Fallis, to be able to adopt their submissions to this panel this morning and wholeheartedly agree with everything that they have submitted to you.  


Secondly, I wish to indicate that I am a person who says what I mean and I believe what I say.  It doesn't always come out in the most eloquent manner so if I say some things which might be offensive to you or Hydro One Networks, Inc., I wish to apologize in advance.  It is certainly not meant to be offensive.  It is just meant to be stated as my clients and I believe the circumstances to be.  


Next.  This may be the first offensive thing that I might say to HONI.  I note the letter that my friend has read, talked about agreements to which his client had agreed to.  Yet I note yesterday, when questions were specifically put to the witnesses on behalf of -- called on behalf of HONI, they avoided the word "agreement" like you would not believe, and turned it into some type of "permissions".


I find that a little offensive to myself and to my intelligence, that they would somehow try to turn what they have already -- even when they haven't had agreements -- try to reword it to be something else.  


So I really, I am very sceptical as to certain evidence and positions that have been put forward by HONI at this hearing.  


My next comment, in advance of actually getting into my submissions.  I note that although my friend, Mr. Nettleton, made comments and objections to the questioning of Mr. Fallis in particular with respect to the -- whether agreements for payment had been made, yet on his submissions, he specifically stated that there had not been any agreements or there had not been any payments made to any individual for access.  He used that word in the past tense.  He did not go on to expand as to whether there are intentions of HONI to make payments in the future to anybody for access, and whether such payments had been agreed to in principle or in fact agreed to.  


So again, I am a little sceptical of the position taken by HONI with respect to those matters.  


Now, learned Members of the Board, I wish to submit to you that you have a very important task here before you today and in the upcoming weeks while you make your decision.  In particular, this is the first time an application of this nature has been brought before this Board and what you decide on this application will set precedents for future applications.  


Therefore, you must look beyond the fact that what you have before you is what I would submit to be a quasi-governmental authority.  You've got the Ontario government, the OPG and HONI, which I believe are not dealing at arm's length, entering into an agreement through OPG so that HONI can say that they weren't a signatory to that agreement; yet they seem to have all of the knowledge of everything that went on in the negotiations of that agreement and the particulars of that agreement within days of it being completed.  And they brought these applications before you.  


So I submit that they were well aware of what was going on prior to that agreement having ever been made and that they put the cart before the horse.  They should have been bringing applications before this Board to consider new transmission lines before OPG ever entered into an agreement with Bruce Power where they were going to pay them billions of dollars if the transmission line couldn’t be put into place in time.  And the Ontario government played and important role in that, in pressuring.  


Next thing is, the importance of these decisions is for the citizens of Ontario, not the citizens of the greater Toronto area and the golden horseshoe for which the transmission lines are primarily going to be put into place.


Everybody seems to forget that the citizens of rural Ontario are also citizens of Ontario, and their property rights and the property right of their neighbours in protecting those property rights, are very important to them.  And I ask you to consider that.


Thirdly, with respect to your important role in setting precedents in this matter.  It is not always going to be HONI or an entity like HONI that is going to be bringing these type of applications.  I have several clients who have been approached by independent companies to install wind-power-generation units on their property and pay them significant amounts of money for the right to do that and to take power from their property, and to put it on the grid, which is primarily operated by OPG and Hydro One.

The reason why I say that is because you're going to be met - I'm certain of it - in the future with companies, sometimes not Ontario-owned companies, sometimes not even Canadian-owned companies, coming before you and asking you to make orders that permit them to trample upon the property rights of citizens of this province.  

So I ask you to keep that in mind while you determine your decision on this matter, because if HONI doesn't have to pay, the Florida Power Corporation is not going to have to pay; yet, they are definitely in it for themselves and they are going to be trampling of the property rights of the citizens of this good province, who pay taxes to the very government which has authorized these rights to be given up.

Now, I intend to make submissions specifically with respect to each of the three issues which are before this Board.  The first issue, issue number 1.  I wish to acknowledge, on behalf of myself and my clients, Cedar Well Excavating, along with Herman and Berta Weller, that we have simply come to the conclusion that there is very little, if anything, we can do to stop the granting of this application.  

We agree with the comments of my friends that it has been brought in a rather expedient manner, which has not given them a true opportunity to respond to what has been thrust upon them through the application made by HONI.  However, we've come to the acknowledgement that there is very little that we're going to be able to do to stop that.

I make those comments on the basis of reading the decision of this Board on the motions which were brought before the Board.  I note that on the strict and sometimes changing timelines, which we have not been given any opportunity to have any input into as to when those dates and timelines would be set.


I have also noted on other written materials disseminated by the Board and the comments made on this hearing, that it has become quite obvious to us that there is little, if anything, we would be able to do to prevent or convince this Board that the application should not be granted at this time, or that any application for leave to -- or for early access, as it has been coined in this hearing, that any application for early access would be denied in circumstances where a leave-to-construct application had already been filed in advance.

If I am not correct in that, I invite you to correct me and to give me the information for which I would be able to research, submit evidence and make argument on that may convince you otherwise that an application for early access may be denied.  

I just simply don't see it as an opportunity available to the landowners who are being affected in circumstances where a leave-to-construct application has been made.

Therefore, I wish to submit to you that given the circumstances which have been put upon myself and my clients, Cedar Well Excavating, along with Herman and Berta Weller, do not strenuously object to the granting of the application.  In fact, we see the importance of the studies that HONI wishes to undertake and to fix its structures.  We do recognize that.  There is no doubt about it.  

However, we don't like the process that we've -- been thrust upon us and the fact that there is no real opportunity for us to object to it.

Therefore, we do not consent to the application, but we're not strenuously objecting to it.

Issue number 2.  Cedar Well and the Wellers acknowledge that early-access activities or interim-access activities proposed by the applicant are appropriate to complete the environmental assessments that they are required to do, and to fix the extent of their proposed towers.  Therefore, we take no position with respect to issue number 2.

Issue number 3.  Cedar Well and the Wellers agree that most, but not all, of the terms and conditions reached between the applicant and Powerline Connections, as submitted to this Board for approval, are appropriate.  

I note, in making that statement, that most of the proposed terms and conditions are what one might expect; that any guest, especially a guest who is unwanted -- who is uninvited and unwanted -- would agree to impose upon themselves prior to accessing your property, and that they would not need the imposition of a tribunal or court order in order to agree to such conditions when entering upon somebody else's property.

Now, my clients do have four areas of concern with respect to the proposed terms and conditions as presented, the 13 proposed terms and conditions.

Those four areas are as follows:  Number one, the notice requirements; number two, the requirement or lack of requirement that HONI and all of its contractors provide proof and evidence of liability insurance and workers' compensation insurance being in place prior to entering upon my client's property.

It is not enough -- I apologize.  I will get to that in a moment.

Number three, the observation clause or condition, term within the proposed terms and conditions, is not satisfactory to my client.  It should be a supervision or observation term or condition, and supervision should include the hiring of persons who are qualified to supervise the people who are undertaking the activities.

Fourthly, whether compensation for the uninvited and unwanted intrusion on the lands of my client by the applicant, which compensation should include use of the lands, destruction to the landowners and inconvenience to the landowner.


And, five, finally, to reimburse the landowners for any observation or supervision costs, regardless of how you wish to term such costs, should be forthcoming from HONI to each and every landowner.

Now, I note that my friend -- one of the things, as my friend talked about -- or in his submissions or in the evidence that was given, that there were 35 properties that would be affected by off-corridor, if I can put it that way, activity, where they would need ingress and egress from the property.

I wonder how Hydro has determined that, because nobody has approached my clients, and they have fences which will need to be knocked down in order for them to stay on the corridor.

So there has been nothing to indicate to you who these 35 people are, or landowners are, and how it was determined.  Are they planning on knocking people's fences down to remain on the corridor, and then under section 98 repairing it?  I don't think that is good enough, because the repair may not be as good as what the fence was prior to the repair.

So unless they're planning on putting in an entire new fence, without a splice in it, I do not -- I would suggest that Ontario Hydro should be disclosing to my clients whether they intend to do that on their property or not.

You have to remember Cedar Well Excavating operates a rather large aggregate pit, which has very specific site plan requirements for fencing and protection of public onto their property.  And my client does not wish Ontario Hydro to be adhering to their staying-on-the-corridor requirements that they have imposed on themselves by, in any way, at any time, jeopardizing his licence to operate that aggregate pit.

These are considerations that don't seem to be -- have been put before this Board. 


Now, also prior to specifically talking about the four areas that I have addressed, I wish to indicate that I think it is accepted law that an applicant is the person who holds the onus.  And in this case, this applicant holds the onus of convincing you that they should not be paying compensation.  They hold the onus of convincing you that all of the proposed terms and conditions are all of the terms and conditions that should be included in any order that this Board makes.  

I submit to you that the applicant in this particular case purposely avoided giving any type of evidence as to what compensation and other terms and conditions that was not satisfactory to them.  They simply just avoided those things.  And then on submissions say to you:  Nothing in the terms and conditions was strenuously opposed; that's because we don't strenuously oppose the terms and conditions that they've put before you and the evidence that they have put before you.  

We have strenuously opposed those things which they did not put before you, and when we tried to ask questions about it, objections were raised, and less than forthright answers were given.  

So to me, I would submit to you that the applicant has failed in fulfilling their onus in putting proper evidence before you as to what are their obligations for compensation in other areas that I have addressed and for which my friends have addressed before you this morning.  

Now, with respect to the notice requirements.  I agree with my friend, Mr. Millar, that both written and oral notice should be provided to all landowners.  

I would submit to you that 48 hours' notice is insufficient.  Significantly, grossly insufficient.  This applicant seems to know absolutely every test that they want to make.  They seem to know which properties they need to access from the roadway or from off-corridor property.  They seem to know all of this stuff, yet they only want to give the landowners 48 hours' notice as to when they're going to come upon their lands.  

It may be inconvenient for the applicant to give greater notice, but I can guarantee you, it is certainly most inconvenient for the landowners to have them come upon their property, uninvited, unwanted, and on 48 hours' notice to institute significant activities which we have no control over.  

As such, I suggest that the applicant should be required to provide at least 60 days' actual notice, proven by affidavit, of the actual work studies and other activities they intend to partake on each and every landowner's property, prior to coming onto that property.  

The reason why I say this is because my client should have the opportunity, whether this Board orders it or not, to dig into his own pocket and hire persons who are qualified to properly observe or supervise the workers of HONI to ensure that they are conducting their -- the tests, the procedures, the activities for which they've advised him.  Two days' notice to hire, in certain cases, experts will be grossly insufficient.  Sixty days' notice, as we all know, all professionals know, sixty days is not even that great of notice, in most cases, for qualified professionals.  

Then I would suggest that the notice 30 days' advance notice of the actual date upon which access will be commenced.  Again, 30 days is not unreasonable where a person needs to make other arrangements.


My client operates a rather large aggregate pit, and he will not be able to mine from the area where HONI and their contractors are undertaking their studies during the period in which he -- in which they're on his property.  

He may need 30 days in order to mine certain aggregate from those areas and stockpile it elsewhere on his property so that he does not interfere with HONI when they are on his property for access purposes.  

That is a safety requirement.  That is also the simple realization that it is going to inconvenience him and inconvenience HONI in undertaking their activities, if he does need to mine the areas where they're conducting their studies during the access period.  

I submit those are not unreasonable requests for an owner who is going to have persons upon his property who are unwanted and uninvited.


Next.  My second item, liability and workers' compensation insurance.  It is not unreasonable to ask HONI and their contractors to provide proof or evidence of their confirmation of their contractors' liability.  I represent a number of large contractors, both builders and other contractors.  It is a standard clause these days in every construction contract, which this is much akin to, going on to somebody's property to do surveys and environmental studies, to have a clause in those contracts which require all contractors to produce either a bond or to produce evidence of liability insurance and workers' compensation or WSIB insurance.  

The reality is, they're not allowed to work on my client's property without that stuff in any event.  So it shouldn't be a problem to produce it.  

Section 98, I know my friend made great pains to address section 98 and that HONI would be required to pay for any damages.  Damages are one thing.  Proving that the ability to pay for those damages is another thing, in advance of causing them.  And that is what we're asking for:   Proof that the people who will be on my client's property, who could potentially cause damages, will be able to fulfil their obligations to my client if they do cause those damages.  

I am not saying this because I don't think that HONI has the financial wherewithal to compensate my client for those damages.  I'm saying it because you're setting up a precedent here and we need to think, in the future, of other companies which might bring these type of applications before the Ontario Energy Board, who may not have the financial wherewithal or other abilities that HONI has.  And that's the reason why I have brought that to light.  It is not to try to impose any hardship upon HONI or their contractors.  

The third issue which I've brought before you is the observation or supervision issue.  HONI, as I've indicated a number of times, is an uninvited and unwelcome entity upon my client's property.  They don't just have the right to observe them.  They have the right to supervise them.  And if HONI doesn't think they have the right to supervise them, they're sadly mistaken.  

You think about it.  If I came into your backyard to do work, don't you have the right to supervise me?  It's common sense.  And if it costs my client to hire people who are qualified to supervise HONI, my client should be compensated for that.  They are uninvited and unwelcome on his property.  That's the bottom line.  And he has an absolute right to supervise them, and to demand that they pay for that supervision so that he can ensure that they work safely; they only do the things for which they have advised him they will be doing and which they are authorized to do; and to ensure that when they leave, that there is no, no question that his property has been put back into the condition it was prior to their entrance upon his property.  That should be an absolute right.  That shouldn't even be open for discussion.

Again, HONI is what I would term as a quasi-governmental authority, and they absolutely have the wherewithal to deal with these things, and I'm sure that they are going to hire appropriate contractors and they're going to conduct themselves in an appropriate manner.  There is no doubt about that.  

I don't doubt that for a moment, but I am thinking down the road when you start getting applications from private companies who may not have those objectives in mind, and the poor property owners who are going to be subjected to the precedent which is set on this hearing and have to fight at that time.  It shouldn't be something that they need to worry about.

So we need to treat HONI like they are any other private entity which is wishing to go upon somebody else's property for the purposes of their own gain and not the gain of the property owner.

Compensation.  I do not wish to suggest to you any level of compensation.  I would prefer that my client have the opportunity to negotiate that directly with HONI, but it should be something that HONI should be required to do with each and every landowner.

I make these comments because my client has a very specialized piece of property which other individuals don't.  The schedule for which Mr. Fallis has laid out for you doesn't take into account that my client is not going to be able to operate his business in the area that the early-access activities are going to be conducted.  

It doesn't take into account that my client may have to stockpile or inconvenience himself or take employees off other jobs to prepare for the access.  It doesn't take into account that -- he doesn't specifically have a building on that piece of property, but does have very valuable aggregate which must be removed from the property or which could be removed from the property during early-access activities.

So, therefore, I would prefer that my client be able to negotiate directly with HONI as to a compensation level.

If that is not the case, then I would adopt the schedule for which Mr. Fallis has indicated, subject to special circumstances being something which individual landowners may be able to raise with HONI in granting the access to their property.

As I have already indicated, that compensation should include the costs of supervision, if required or if desired by the landowner.

Subject to any questions you may have, those are my submissions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. McMeeken.  Mr. Rupert has a question.

Questions from the Board:


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. McMeeken, I understand I think most of what you were saying about your concerns on the conditions, but I didn't understand one point, which is -- it's not damages.  It is -- well, on damages, you seem to suggest that Hydro One should have to somehow put up some money or show proof of being able to financially repair, put back any damage that was done.

I wasn't sure of what you are actually are proposing for the terms and conditions.  Are you suggesting they have to post some bond or cash with someone before they enter your client's property?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Well, I apologize if I didn't -- as I said, I don't always put it in the most eloquent or most understandable way.  But I am looking -- I represent a number of contractors.  In most general-contract contracts these days, there are posting of bond requirements for performance of your activities or for any damages you might cause while performing your activities.

In addition to the posting of bond, most of those contracts, if not all, require that each contractor and sub-contractor provide to the owner of the property, in advance of entering upon their property, proof of liability insurance and proof of their workers' compensation insurance.

The posting of a bond, in this particular case, by HONI for any damages is probably not required.  We all know they have the financial wherewithal to fix any damages that they have caused, if they cause any.

What I am looking at is I am trying to be more insightful into future applications which might come before this Board in assisting you in understanding that precedence is very important.

One of the -- by the way, just so that you know, the wind towers I was talking about in my submissions are on the gravel pit, and one of the proposed wind towers is on the corridor.  So my client is going to lose that opportunity to put that wind tower on that corridor.  So this is why it has become so important to us.

But, in any event, the company which has approached my client about putting -- or previously approached my client of putting wind towers on his property is a company out of Florida.  We have no idea who that company is, what their financial wherewithal is.  It might be an up-start company that is just, on speculation, trying to get the financing and put these things up.

Those type of companies, you will want a bond from them and you will want proof of their insurance, both their liability insurance and their workers compensation insurance, prior to permitting them to enter upon the lands of Ontario citizens.  

So in this particular case, I'm just suggesting that HONI may be required to do that to set a precedent for future applications, which -- you may not have an applicant who is as well-heeled as HONI before you.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay, thanks.  I understand now.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. McMeeken.  We will now break...

We will now break until 20 minutes past 12:00, and then we will have reply argument, and then we will have the oral comments and that should conclude the proceeding for today.  

--- Recess taken at 11:57 a.m.


--- On resuming at 12:23 p.m. 

MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  We have made a change to the order.  We will ask Mr. Eschlboeck to give his comments, first, please.  

Submissions by Mr. Eschlboeck: 


MR. ESCHLBOECK:  Thank you, Madam Chair, for giving me the opportunity to speak here today and voice my concerns.  

Yesterday I was a concerned property owner.  Today I am a very worried one.  I don't know, I don't see how a simple discussion with a Hydro One agent can turn into, what I will say, an access agreement.  

Yesterday Mr. Thomson, when he was questioned by Mr. Ross, he denied I don't know how many times, there is no negotiations going on with any property owners.  

Later on in the day, when Mr. Fallis was questioning Mr. Thomson, he finally admitted to it.  I wonder, is that the kind of negotiations that is going on with property owners on the back door?  Isn't Hydro One in here to get permission from this Board to access the property?  Not go out the back door and negotiate with property owners?  It is very concerning to me how they do business.  

And I am just absolutely stunned.  I am almost out of words.  I always thought this is a country, the greatest country in the world, like everybody says.  

Today I get the feeling, I wonder if it if is just the greatest country for the rich, powerful or ruthless.  Because the way Hydro One is conducting businesses is, I don't know, in my opinion, borderline criminal.  

I only can say, I am very concerned, and it seems Mr. Fallis was concerned about the speed Hydro One is operating.  It looks like Hydro One is a runaway speed train and they don't care if they run over one property owner or 450.  I just hope when the dust settles, there won't be 450 property owners laying on the tracks rolled over by Hydro One, because they have to deliver hydro to the customers.  It's -- it's unbelievable.  It seems almost like a bad dream.


I surely hope this Board will consider every aspect and every concern, no matter how big or small it is, when they make the decisions, because it worries me very much if Hydro One even before this Board gives permission, acting the way they do.  I wonder what they do when they have permission to go on my property, or the other 449 properties.  

Like, it's -- it's, like I said, I am speechless.  I don't know.  I have nothing further to say.  

I would like to thank this Board for the opportunity to speak here and I sure hope these hearings will have a positive outcome for all 450 property owners.  

Thank you very much.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Eschlboeck, for sharing your comments with us.  We will consider them in our decision.  

Mr. Nettleton.  

Reply submissions by Mr. Nettleton:  

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chair and Panel Members.  I think what I would like to do is start with Mr. Eschlboeck's comments.  They highlight one of the real concerns and real purposes that Hydro One is seeking to address through this proceeding and to -- and brings to light one of the concerns and realities that Hydro One has had to contend with while this proceeding has taken its course.  

I am talking about urgency.  The reality is, is that the early-access application took place, was made on March 30th, 2007.  And throughout this time period, Hydro One has been concerned about the time that it has to proceed with this project.  And part of that time concern relates to ensuring that adequate information is gathered in respect of the fixing of the site of the work, which includes environmental assessment data.  

Hydro One has been up-front.  Hydro One has indicated that it has gone to landowners to seek voluntary permission to go onto lands and to obtain their permission, without payment, to do and start some of the work.  And that work relates to the very same activities that we're speaking of today.  

In a perfect world, if Hydro One could have had the early-access application heard in a more timely fashion, maybe it would have been possible to have all of these issues dealt with up-front.  But it simply was not the case.  

Hydro One had had to go forward and move forward to seek permissions from those landowners willing to give those permissions in order to carry out the work.  

My friend, Mr. Wellenreiter, brought forward a letter of equal concern, a letter that was provided to you and sent by one of Hydro One's property agents, Mr. John Sheehan.  This, again, evidences the type of step that is taking place with Hydro One in having to go out and seek voluntary permission from landowners.  This letter obviously, based on Mr. Wellenreiter's submissions, obviously there is a miscommunication.  Clearly, there is a miscommunication between what the understanding of Mr. Sheehan was and Mr. Eschlboeck.  

That misunderstanding is going to be addressed, I am advised, by Hydro One immediately and by way of written response to confirm that there is no agreement.  But it also, in my respectful submission, highlights the urgency and need for this Board to issue an order as soon as possible so that the principles of transparency and objectivity can be established for all landowners in respect of early-access activities.


These types of misunderstandings about how early-access activities are going to be carried out can all be addressed, in my respectful submission, by a timely order of this Board that sets out and is provided to landowners in a timely basis and in a transparent manner.


There seems to be, in my respectful submission, Madam Chair and Panel Members, a great deal of confusion, perhaps misunderstanding, or clever attempts to ignore what this application is about and what it's not about.


This application has been made pursuant to section 98(1.1) of the Ontario Energy Board Act.  It is an application to access lands for specific and limited purposes related to the fixing of a site of a proposed work.


It is not about an application for permission to expropriate lands or interest in lands.  If it were, that application would be made under different sections and different legislation.  And I am referring specifically to section 99 of your Act.


This is not an application made for expropriation.  

The difference between what is sought, namely permission to access lands and to conduct activities for the fixing of the site of the work do not require or constitute a taking of in rem rights.  Now, that is a legal term that means property rights, interest in land as opposed to personal property, real property interests.

It is a case, in my respectful submission, that one can obtain the right to use land without having to take a land -- a real property interest in the land.

Mr. Fallis made reference to that in his argument.  He indicated it was all about rent.  Well, rent, temporary use of a land where rent is paid and it is not a lease, constitutes personal rights, not in rem rights, not real property interests. 

When one goes out and constructs a linear development such as a powerline, one may need to acquire temporary access rights or working-space rights.  Those, too, are construed as licences.  They're construed as licences because those are personal rights, personal property rights, not real property interests.

If Hydro One required real property interests, it would be required to obtain those real property interests either through negotiation or through expropriation, and the legislation contemplates that.

What is new in this proceeding and new to this legislative scheme is section 98(1.1).  It is an important new addition to the legislative scheme.  It is intended for instances where an applicant requires to conduct preliminary work associated with a fixing of the site of a proposed work, but following a section 92 application having been made.  And that is important protection, in my respectful submission.

It is important protection, because it ensures that the interests that the applicant is seeking are genuine, that there is some truth and reasonableness to the request.

If the section 92 application requirement had not been met, then there would be no possibility for Hydro One to carry out or seek the Board's permission to carry out early-access activities.  But the section 92 application has been filed.  It has been set down for hearing.  It is a genuine application.  It has met the Board's filing requirements and is being considered.

In our respectful submission, therefore, the prerequisites for the early-access application have been met.

Section 98(1.1) is new to the Ontario legislative scheme.  However, there are like provisions to section 98(1.1) in other legislative schemes.  I mentioned this in my argument-in-chief.  I misspoke myself by indicating it was the Alberta Pipeline Act.  It is not.  It is the Alberta Surface Rights Act, and it is, in fact, section 12 of the Alberta Surface Rights Act that refers to surveying activities.

I have a copy and I would like to share it with you, if I could, Madam Chair, and I will provide copies to Mr. Millar and my friends.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes, you may.  

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I can't recall what exhibit number we're on.

MS. NOWINA:  K2.6, Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR:  K2.6.  These are excerpts from the Alberta Surface Rights Act.
EXHIBIT NO. K2.6:  EXCERPTS FROM ALBERTA SURFACE RIGHTS ACT.

MS. ROSS:  At this point, Madam Chair, if I may, I'm going to ask that my friend undertake to provide to the Board and to all of us a complete copy of the legislation, for it is always dangerous and, indeed, difficult to read just excerpts from anything, a case or a piece of legislation, without understanding the entire context, and, indeed, as Mr. Fallis referred to it in his submissions, the purpose and the intent of the objectives of the given piece of legislation so that we can respond to this in a meaningful fashion.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Madam Chair, I wish to enter an objection to my friend going down this particular course of action in his reply.

He's simply going over what he already went over in his initial -- his opening submissions.  Therefore, it is inappropriate for reply, in any event.  He has made these submissions already.

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair --

MS. ROSS:  We concur in that objection.  I noted that, to myself, a moment ago, that this is not proper reply.  This is a repeat of the main submissions our friend made yesterday.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton.

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, with due respect, my friends, in their arguments, had made it quite clear that they were characterizing this application as an interim expropriation.  Those were the terms used.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Not me.

MR. NETTLETON:  Well, Mr. McMeeken --

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken, comments aren't necessary.

MR. McMEEKEN:  I apologize.

MS. NOWINA:  Go ahead, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  May I continue?

MS. NOWINA:  Yes, please.

MR. NETTLETON:  With respect to the request for a full copy of the Alberta Surface Rights Act, I will be happy to e-mail that.  I would note that it is obviously publicly available.  It is a publicly available document.

My understanding is that it is not the practice of this Board to require full copies of legislation to be provided to parties, that parties can refer to publicly available documents, including excerpts, and I undertake that the copy that I have provided the Board and what I will be discussing is an accurate copy of that legislation.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, as a courtesy, if you could e-mail all of the parties and the Board either the legislation or the link to it.

MR. NETTLETON:  I will.

MS. NOWINA:  That will be fine.  In terms of the objection to the discussion, the Board wants to hear the argument on this case -- on this matter.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  You will see, Madam Chair, that -- if I can refer you to the second page of the document, section 14 of the Alberta Surface Rights Act discusses the concept of surveys, and it relates to operators proposing to undertake operations mentioned in the Act, and I haven't included the definitions, but I can tell you that power transmission lines is one operation that is carried out.  Pipelines are another.

And the point of this is that section 14 operates as an exclusion.  You will see that not -- it states notwithstanding section 12(1) and 12(2), and it is for that reason that I have included the first page, because I want to make sure that you were aware of what the nature of the exclusion is.

And you will see, in section 12(1), that there is a general exclusion from allowing anyone the ability to enter upon lands.

In the Alberta scheme, that is known as a right of entry, and that is consistent with an expropriation.

So you cannot operate -- you cannot go onto lands without first obtaining a right of entry order from the Surface Rights Board.  But there is an exclusion from that general framework, and that exclusion is with respect to surveys and surveying activities.

You will see, as it relates to private lands, that discussion is found in subsection 2.  And the intent of subsection 2 is that the operator shall make reasonable attempts to give notice of it to the person in possession of the land before entering on it, and the operator is liable to the owner or the occupant of the land, as the case may be, for any damage caused by the operator or that other person.

The point that I am trying to make, Madam Chair, is simply this.  The section that we are operating here, in this case, section 98(1.1), is very similar to other legislative schemes such as the one that I have shown you here today.

There is an important difference in both legislative schemes.  In Alberta, rights of entry deal with the expropriation of in rem rights; that is to say of property rights, real property interests.  

The exclusion from having to go through the expropriation process in Alberta relates to surveying activities, just as it does in Ontario, in my respectful submissions.  That is the intent of section 98(1.1).

Now, it is interesting that this section, the Alberta section, came into effect in 1983.  That's important, in my respectful submission, because it indicates a change.  And one of the changes that I would submit has been adopted is the very issue that Mr. Fallis raised today with the Supreme Court of Canada decision that indicated that expropriation of property rights demands compensation.  That's the general purpose.  That's the general principle that he was articulating in the Manitoba case.  

The Manitoba case was heard and decided in 1978.  The legislative schemes have changed from that general principle.  They have legislated around that concept.  The legislation has intended, in my respectful submission, for there to be an exclusion.  The exclusion is to allow for surveying activities in Alberta, under section 14; in Ontario, what is now found in section 98(1.1) for limited purposes.  All of which relate to purposes for public utilities, public utilities to carry out work necessary for the fixing of sites and siting of proposed works and undertakings. 

It is important, in my respectful submission, Madam Chair and Panel Members, that we understand, that is the purpose of this application, which is to say, it is a purpose for accessing lands, not to expropriate or take in rem interests.  

It is clear, in my respectful submission, that there are parties here today that do not think that section 98(1.1) provides adequate protection to landowners.  That is to say, that compensation is a matter that should be addressed under the guise of section 98(1.1).  But that is not what the legislation says.  Compensation is not something that is expressly addressed.  

In the Motions Day proceeding, you will recall that we had a discussion and legal arguments were presented regarding the concept of intervenor funding and costs.  And you will recall that certain parties at that proceeding took the view that the Board had jurisdiction to award intervenor funding.  And it was the position of Hydro One, in that proceeding, that the Board had no such jurisdiction because such jurisdiction required an expressed reference in legislation.  

The same situation applies here.  If the legislature had expressly contemplated the Board to make awards of compensation for early-access approvals, they would have done so.  That legislative provision does not exist.  

It is up to the legislature to make amendments, should the legislature so choose; but it is not appropriate, in my respectful submission, for this Board to create legal fictions to get to that result.    

And that, in my respectful submission, would be the case should the Board adopt what Mr. Fallis and Mr. Ross were proposing here today.  Orders that would require Hydro One to provide for compensation is not a matter within your purview, a purview described and defined by section 98(1.1).  

It is in the alternative, appropriate for the Board to condition any order to ensure all parties understand and are made aware that Hydro One is liable for any damages that are caused by its early-access activities.  That provision is expressly contemplated in the legislation.  It is entirely appropriate for the Board to make that point known in any order that the Board makes.  And that is consistent with the amendment that was made to the revised terms and conditions filed this morning.  That was original Board Staff condition and we accept that condition.  We accept it because it is the law.  It is what the legislation contemplates and says.  

Mr. Ross indicated, in his submissions, that it would be entirely appropriate for the Board to make Hydro either undertake negotiations with landowners prior to any order being issued or for the Board to come up with or have Hydro One come up with generic compensation requirements that would apply across the Board for all landowners.  

I found it entirely interesting that Mr. McMeeken did not share that view; that is, that he felt it far more appropriate for his client to have the opportunity and benefit to negotiate individually with Hydro One.  

I think that that disparity in views highlights the fact and the real challenge that Hydro One has before it of having to appease over 400 different views and perspectives on how land-acquisition compensation should proceed forward.  It is an interesting challenge for Hydro One.  It is not a matter for this Board, however, to consider and deliberate upon in this proceeding.  

It is a matter relating to land-acquisition compensation.  This hearing is not about land acquisition.  Land-acquisition compensation and negotiations will be a matter that is contemplated to take place by Hydro One and, in fact, steps are already underway to ensure that that process is moving forward.  The urgency of this project requires as much.  

The two, however, the two issues:  Early-access and land-acquisition compensation, however, are different and they have to be treated differently.  

This proceeding, again, is about early access.  This proceeding is relating to the terms and conditions upon which access should be granted and whether the activities that Hydro One has proposed are reasonable.  

Mr. Fallis indicated that there needs to be a clear delineation of the lands which Hydro One should be entitled to access, should any approval be granted.  Hydro One agrees.  Hydro One has done that by making reference to the lands found in its section 92 application.


The issue that arises relates to how any incidental lands that may be required for access purposes to those identified lands should be treated.  And the record is, in my respectful submission, still unclear on that point.  

What I would suggest, Madam Chair, is that the order that is granted makes note of the fact that Hydro One may require additional access to lands for the purpose of accessing the widened corridor that is outlined in the section 92 and, if and when those additional lands are required and cannot be obtained through negotiations, that recourse is always available to the Board for consideration of that specific issue.  

Mr. Fallis indicated that there was some sort of descriptional problem that the Board faces in identifying the lands that would be the subject matter of early access.  Hydro One disagrees.  Again, the lands are shown on maps.  The maps are included in the section 92 application.  Mr. Fallis showed and identified the lands that are the subject matter of the proposed early-access activities to the witnesses.

There was no evidence in this proceeding that there was some degree of uncertainty or unclarity or problems in describing the lands that were the subject matter of early-access activities.  The Board should disregard that line of argument completely, in my respectful submission.

Mr. Fallis referred to the R. v. Tener case, which is a 1985 decision of the Supreme Court of Canada.  I was not provided a copy of any of Mr. Fallis' materials in advance, but, in any event, I would note that at page 2 of the decision, and albeit this is the headnote, I would note the language used is, "respondent's interest was expropriated through the operation of the Park Act".  And then further down in the headnote discussion of the decision of Chief Justices Dickson and Wilson, it reads, "This was a case of expropriation."

Well, Madam Chair and Panel Members, I don't think you need to read past that comment.  It is completely distinguishable from the facts before you, because this is not a case of expropriation.  If it were, we would be applying under a different legislation.

The case has no bearing upon the decisions that are before you concerning the nature of a request to access lands, as provided for in section 98(1.1).

Now, Mr. Fallis and Mr. Ross indicated that the right that would be trammelled upon would be the right to exclude others from accessing lands, and they assert that that is one of the rights in the bundle of in rem rights or property rights that are held.  But the right to exclude would be trammelled upon but for the ability of this Board to grant an approval of early access under section 98(1.1).  That's the whole point of the legislative scheme.

Without that provision, there would be no opportunity to go on to the lands and carry out the surveying activities that Act and legislation contemplates.  If it were any other way, there would be a different scheme contemplated, and, as Mr. Fallis indicated, a different approach would have been required; as was the case in the last expansion from Bruce to Milton, where expropriation proceedings were necessary at the first instance.

That is not the case here.  It is entirely appropriate for Hydro One to make use of the new legislative scheme and for it to carry out the activities that the legislation contemplates.

I think, in my respectful submission, Madam Chair, the positions of Mr. Ross and Mr. Fallis -- and I'm not sure if it is now Fallis and Ross, because there seems to be some joining of interests, as noted in the draft order that was provided, but I am assuming that the groups are separate, so I will treat them separately for this proceeding.

MS. ROSS:  Our friend should do that.  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

MR. NETTLETON:  It strikes me, Madam Chair, that the end result is really how to effect compensation for landowners.  That seems to be the primary driver of the views expressed by Messrs. Ross and Mr. Fallis.  How do you get to compensation?  How do you find a way -- how can they articulate a way for the Board to allow for compensation to be provided to landowners for early-access activities, when there is no such provision contemplated in the legislative scheme?

They have suggested to you two ways.  They have suggested to characterize this application as really an interim expropriation, which it is not.  The other way is to require Hydro One to negotiate with landowners for compensation entitlement in relation to the access that they -- that Hydro One requires.

We submit that that would be an improper purpose and completely inconsistent with what is contemplated in the legislative scheme.

Had the legislative scheme wanted or required Hydro One to carry out negotiations in advance of having to make an application to the Board, it would have said so.  It doesn't say so.  It is free and open for Hydro One to make an application pursuant to section 98(1.1) in the manner in which it has.

It has completed the prerequisites.  The application is ripe, and it should be heard and considered without any suggestion of prerequisites for negotiation of access agreements and compensation.

Mr. Fallis indicated that there would be significant costs if deadlines were missed, and he spoke and provided you with a summary of a document that was -- that he had submitted, and tried to have a discussion with Hydro One witnesses, and at each time Hydro One witnesses had indicated that they had no understanding of the document that he was presenting.  

And, in any event, Mr. Fallis, through final argument, provided evidence, in my respectful submission, about that document.

Originally, I was -- my submissions, I was thinking that my submissions would be on that point, about whether it was appropriate for evidence to be provided in argument.  But as Mr. Fallis was going through his discussion, I understood the point to be that there would be a significant cost if deadlines were missed.  And it struck me that there is a point in common here with Hydro One, and that is to say, it is the urgency of the application that we are trying to address here by having the Board consider this matter in a timely fashion so deadlines will not be missed.

What Mr. Fallis, though, went on to suggest was that it shouldn't be the fault of the landowners.  That landowners have done nothing wrong, was language that Mr. Fallis used.  But that suggests that someone is accusing landowners of having done something wrong, and that is just simply not the evidence.  That is not Hydro One's position.

Hydro One is saying that there is an urgent need to address and have addressed through the applications that it has put to the Board.  It is urgent that Hydro One carry out the early-access activities to ensure that adequate time and growing seasons and data collected about the growing seasons is obtained.

But the significant cost issue really drives home the point that Hydro One needs to get on with their work.  It's simply not clear how, though, the cost data that Mr. Fallis has referred to has been tested or is in any way relevant to this proceeding.

I take the point that there is a significant issue, and I'm sure Mr. Fallis will raise that significant issue in the proper hearing forum, namely the section 92 forum.  But as it relates to this issue and this application, I think that the only matter relates to the significance of missing deadlines and Hydro One couldn't agree more.  We want to get on with it.  

Now, Mr. Fallis went on to suggest that, and made statements like:  There's a false economy, and that "We want you to meet with Hydro One officials"; in other words, that we want the Board to ensure and demand that Hydro One meet with Hydro One -- sorry, with landowners.  And that landowners should be given the opportunity to discuss routing alternatives.


And I think that the evidence that you have heard this morning or yesterday morning, rather, Madam Chair and Panel Members, is that those activities are going to be taking place, that consultations with landowners are going to take place.  Discussion about how the activities that are being applied for here today are going to be carried out will be the subject matter of discussions with landowners.  There is no false economy here.


Routing alternatives will be a matter for discussion in the section 92 application.  When landowners come forward or their counsel come forward and ask questions about, Did you consider this route?, Hydro One will have to be prepared to address those types of questions, and we fully expect Mr. Fallis and others to raise those types of questions in that proceeding.  But they're not relevant to this proceeding.  

The suggestion that Mr. Fallis made that compensation is mandatory -- his words -- is simply an accusation that has no legal basis.  

Mr. Fallis has not referred to any section that obligates this Board to impose compensation for early-access activities.  

Mr. Fallis suggested that Hydro One is applying to do anything within the two years, that is contemplated in the early-access-approval terms and conditions, and that is simply not right.  

Hydro One is not requesting a blank cheque or an open order to carry out activities in respect of the two-year period for the early-access activities.  The activities have been expressed and described in the application and they have been articulated in the conditions that are proposed.  

Hydro One does not take opposition with or make opposition to the idea that Mr. Millar suggested of having the terms and conditions be included in written documentation that is forwarded to landowners.  We think that that does meet the objectives of transparency and openness and ensures landowners understand the basis and the conduct that will govern Hydro One when they carry out early-access activities, should they be approved.  

Mr. Wellenreiter discussed the issue of notice, and agreed with my friend, Mr. Millar, in his submission, that notice should not be as it is described in the conditions that have been agreed to with Powerline Connections, that is to say, written or oral notice.  Rather, it should be "written and oral notice."  

The issue of notice, Madam Chair, has a higher principle, and we really have to, as one person described to me, zoom up to 30,000 feet for a moment to understand what principle and what objective should be governing the issue of notice.  

In the Alberta legislation that I have shown to you, you will see that, how they have dealt with it is language that says:  That the operator shall make a reasonable attempt to give notice of it to the person in possession.  

And in my respectful submissions, that is what was contemplated in the draft terms and conditions that Hydro One has provided.  Hydro One is trying to be reasonable in providing notice in advance of access occurring on lands.  The reasonableness of that notice, though, has to take into account practical realities.  The practical realities define the need for flexibility.  And flexibility in legalese is "or" as opposed to "and."  

If there are, for example, circumstances where landowners have consulted, been consulted with property agents, about early-access activities, and a window that has been contemplated to be carried -- for access activities to be carried out is missed for a whole host of reasons, weather, breakdown of equipment, change in schedule, the question is:  Is it reasonable for Hydro One to go back to the landowner and provide another written notice and take on the risk and responsibility of not being able to provide that written notice?  What if the landowner isn't home?  Does the landowner then have to provide registered mail of the written notice and wait?  

The intent is for Hydro One to be reasonable and practical about the notification requirement.  The notification requirement, in those circumstances, and in my respectful submission, should be effected by way of common sense.  A phone call to the landowner informing them that they would not be on the land or cannot make the land window or the access window and that a rescheduling of that would have to be the normal and practical result.  

The issue is reasonableness, Madam Chair and Panel Members, and the concept that we want to ensure is that reasonableness applies both to landowners and to Hydro One in carrying out these activities.  It's in no one's best interest for Hydro One to have to hopscotch around properties where notice has not been effected in a procedure that is described by the Board in a Board Order.  That is to say, if written notice cannot be effected and then you have to effect personal notice by way of registered mail and if no personal notice by way of registered mail can be effected, that some other form of notice needs to be provided.  

It detracts from the whole purpose of the legislation.  Recall that the legislation is contemplating access activities so that regulatory applications can be made in a timely basis and the conditions and terms that you impose need to ensure that practical, common-sense approaches are adopted to ensure that access activities can occur in a timely and efficient and effective manner.  

Mr. Wellenreiter indicated that the responses from HONI's witnesses were disconcerting and provided no comfort to landowners.  There was also the suggestion that I had been less than forthright in discussing whether or not early-access payments had been made by Hydro One and the suggestion was that the use of the term "may" meant some past-tense as opposed to future-tense issue.  

In my respectful submission, Madam Chair, that is completely irrelevant, and highly improper for accusations to be made about counsel's conduct to be made in that fashion.  It is also completely inappropriate for Hydro One's witnesses to be characterized as being less than forthright in their responses.  

Hydro One's witnesses appeared before you.  Their evidence was tested.  That's the purpose of cross-examination.  In my respectful submission, that evidence has shown that there is urgent need, that the activities comprising early access are reasonable, and that compensation for early access is not a matter that Hydro One has provided to any landowner.  That was the evidence of Mr. Skalski.


To suggest that there was some other approach or hidden agenda associated with that is -- there's no foundation for such a suggestion and it should be completely disregarded.


Mr. McMeeken's comments to you were bold, stated in a bold manner, and I like the fact that counsel are prepared and should come prepared to this Board in a very direct manner.  I, with respect, think that is the right approach.


But Mr. McMeeken's suggestion that this proceeding should, in some way, be one that is intended for the purpose of precedent-setting principles for every type of early-access activity application that may come before you is simply not appropriate.  


We cannot be, and this proceeding should not be, all things to all potential and future unknown early-access applications.


You must work with the facts that are before you.  Mr. McMeeken does not take objection to Hydro One's financial integrity and wherewithal.  Mr. McMeeken did not take issue with the types of contractors and procurement practices which Hydro One is going to be carrying out in respect of early-access activities.  Those were his comments.  


There is no basis, in my respectful submission, based on those comments, for this Board to impose conditions that may otherwise be appropriate for other types of applicants that come before you.


It is also important to recognize that section 92 has a precursor or prerequisite requirement.  It relates to the expansion or construction of transmission lines or the interconnections to transmission lines.  Mr. McMeeken seemed to be suggesting that there was a concern with generation, wind-power generation, in particular, to be coming before this Board with less than equivalent indemnification or insurance requirements than Hydro One.


It may be that you have an applicant in the future that is not Hydro One or doesn't have the same financial capabilities of Hydro One, but I am not sure that generators need to make applications under section 92.  And, thus, if they cannot make applications under section 92, then they may not be afforded the opportunity to make applications under section 98(1.1).  


But the point really is moot.  The point is that the application before you is being made by a very significant party, and by "significant", I mean financial wherewithal 

-- the financial wherewithal of Hydro One is not in dispute.


As a result, there should be no consideration or no reason for this Board to impose conditions that would require its contractors to, upon request, provide proof of insurance.  The point is that section 98(2) requires any damages to be compensated for by the applicant.  Hydro One takes that responsibility.


If there are damages sustained, whether it is from its employees or the contractors that it is hiring, and those damages are suffered to landowners where those early-access activities are going to be carried out, recourse is with Hydro One, the applicant.


Mr. McMeeken also indicated a suggestion that the application was fait accompli, a suggestion that there was really no reason for anyone to seriously object to this proceeding and that Mr. McMeeken, perhaps, had not been afforded an opportunity to participate in this proceeding as fully as he would have liked to.  


Quite frankly, Madam Chair, those submissions have no weight or bearing.  The notification requirements that the Board has followed in respect of this proceeding have been open, transparent, have afforded all parties the opportunity to participate fully.  There was opportunity for parties to present evidence, opportunities for parties to ask information requests to the applicant.  There were opportunities for cross-examination. 


This has been a full, open and fair hearing, and to suggest that there is some predetermination in the mind of this Board is simply not appropriate.  Hydro One certainly does not take this proceeding to be, in any way, shape or form, fait accompli.


His suggestion that there is no reason for them to object because the decision is likely to be positive towards Hydro One is, frankly, a position that should receive no bearing or weight.


What I understood Mr. McMeeken to say, however, was that they aren't consenting to the request that Hydro One has made, but they don't object to it; which is understood, I believe.  But then what I understood Mr. McMeeken to do is go on to talk about four areas that he would like to see improvements to the terms and conditions.


Now, some of those were points that he had discussed in cross-examination and others were legal in nature.  As I understood the four points, the first was notice, and I have already discussed that and I will move on from it.  The position that Hydro One takes is notice needs to be flexible.  It needs to read as it is found in the conditions, the terms and conditions, to ensure that flexibility of written or oral notice.


The second point was related to the need for proof of insurance, but that point seems to be a concern regarding precedent and not related to the facts before you in this proceeding, dealing with this applicant.


The third condition or concern was that of supervision, and before Mr. -- well, I will come back to the 3.5 (sic) that I have listed here, and that is onus, but let me deal first with supervision.


Mr. McMeeken indicated that there was inherent right to supervise and that landowners should be provided with the opportunity to supervise and be compensated for that supervision.  And the concern related to one that had policy objectives; safety, a concern for ensuring that activities are carried out in a safe and proper manner.  


But Mr. McMeeken went on to say, It is not Hydro One that I am concerned about.  I am certain that Mr. -- that Hydro One will be carrying out and take reasonable steps, were his words, to ensure that those activities will be carried out in a safe manner.  


So his concerns about supervision don't appear to relate to Hydro One, but, again, to this more generic issue that he has a concern over about whether other applicants that come before you should be conditioned by allowing or ensuring landowners have the ability to supervise.


Well, the evidence of Mr. Girard needs to be considered.  Mr. Girard's evidence in this proceeding has been that they are familiar with and have undertaken work on quarry pits or aggregate pits before.  This is not something new, nor would you expect it to be new for an entity such as Hydro One.


The real issue appears to be, with supervision, of whether it can be tied to the question of compensation and whether landowners can be afforded an opportunity to earn monies for supervising the activities that are going to be undertaken by Hydro One.  

Well, that doesn't seem to be an appropriate purpose, in our respectful submission.  If the issue is safety, if the issue is ensuring that activities are carried out in a safe and objective manner, then Hydro One has that obligation.  If there are damages, if there are conditions of upset that result from not carrying out those activities in a safe manner, the Act requires Hydro One to compensate for those damages.  

This idea that an adder should be placed upon the manner in which Hydro One carries out its activities to allow for compensation for supervision by other parties is an unproven requirement.  There is simply no evidence to justify that type of requirement before you.  

If the point is that this is a way in which a legal fiction can be created so that compensation can be provided to landowners, I would submit again it is for an improper purpose.  

The purpose, if the purpose is compensation, that is not a matter within your purview or jurisdiction in respect of this application and legal fictions such as creating the opportunity for supervision to happen is simply not appropriate. 

Now, with respect to notice.  I was a little too brief.  I just recalled from my notes that Mr. McMeeken also indicated that notice should be amended to require significant changes, and those significant changes related to a 60-day actual notice requirement and that 30 days of notice should be provided prior to actual entry.  

Mr. McMeeken suggested that, you know, this is the norm.  This is how industry conducts itself.  Where was the evidence, Madam Chair?  Where was the evidence to suggest that that was, in some way, the norm?  Where were the questions to Hydro One's panel asking what implications a 60-day actual notice requirement or a 30-day actual notice requirement would have upon its schedule to carry out the early-access activities?  

It is simply inappropriate for Mr. McMeeken to, at the end of this process, to jump up and suggest that a 60-day or a 30-day period of notice is appropriate.  If those ideas were ones that he wanted to test with Hydro One, he should have.  He didn't.  

There seemed to be a suggestion, based on the comments of Mr. McMeeken, that there may be a misunderstanding of the types of activities that will be carried out by Hydro One in respect to early access.  Mr. McMeeken suggested that there could be areas of the mine that could not be worked on while activities were carried out.  

This comment may be true; but the point that I want to express to Mr. McMeeken and to you, the Panel, is that the types of activities that Hydro One is largely going to be carrying out in respect of early access relates to ground truthing.  It relates to going on and looking at the flora and the fauna associated with the widened corridor, carrying out legal surveying tasks, carrying out engineering surveys and soil sampling.  

The latter part, the last item, soil sampling, was the subject matter of consideration and specific and different consideration with respect to notice.  And that is found in the revised terms and conditions, and, in particular, a five-day additional notification requirement is found in condition 6.  

And the concern that landowners had and why that provision is there, is so that there was going to be a requirement of a sit-down meeting where there would be a property sketch provided prior to soil sampling activities being carried out.  

Now, why?  Because as Mr. Girard indicated, soil sampling is going to require equipment.  Equipment that's going to be a tracked vehicle.  Not a tank, but a tracked vehicle.  

And it was entirely reasonable, in Hydro One's perspective, to provide landowners with that additional notification requirement.  But 30 days?  60 days?  There is no basis for such a request.  

That takes me to onus.  Mr. McMeeken indicated that Hydro One has an onus to demonstrate and prove to the Board that the application that it has before you should be approved.  Hydro One agrees with that.  That is the onus that Hydro One has:  to demonstrate that the application that early-access activities can and ought to be approved by this Board, that the Board finds them to be in the public interest.  

But that is not all that Mr. McMeeken suggested.  What Mr. McMeeken suggested was that Hydro One has an onus to show that the evidence that it did not provide in this proceeding should be disregarded, which is untenable.  It is illogical.  The context of that statement was made with respect to compensation, that Hydro One has an onus to demonstrate that compensation should be disregarded in this proceeding.  That's not the onus, in my respectful submission.  

The issue of compensation, again, is addressed by way of legislation.  There is no obligation on Hydro One to meet an onus that demonstrates compensation should be disregarded.  

Mr. Skalski indicated to the Panel and to Mr. Millar that compensation is not the subject matter of early-access activities.  

Question asked.  Question answered.  There is no specific onus requirement in respect of evidence that Hydro One has not provided or is relying upon.  

In conclusion, Madam Chair, Hydro One has an urgent need to get on with the early-access activities.  We are one day away from August.  The summer season is quickly approaching, and almost to an end.  The concern that Hydro One has is that it is able to get on and do the work necessary, including environmental-data gathering for the summer season.  

In my respectful submission, this hearing has helped the process, provided you with a transparent, open dialogue and record for you to make an informed decision.  But reviewing where we are at, and where the positions of the parties are at with respect to this application is, perhaps, necessary and should be given, in my respectful submission, consideration as it relates to the decision that is before you.  

There is no serious debate or consideration about the terms and conditions respecting how access should be carried out.  There is really no serious debate or consideration about the types of activities that Hydro One wants to carry out.  No one has suggested to you that property appraisals should not be carried out.  No one has suggesting that legal surveying activities should be carried out.  No one is suggesting that EA activities should not be carried out.  Those are all reasonable activities.  

The only real issue for you to consider is whether there should be some minor tweaking to the terms and conditions, and we say that there shouldn't be.  We say that the conditions, as they exist now, are reasonable, are appropriate, and for the Board to expedite its decision in having this application heard and considered.

To that end, Hydro One would like to suggest and request that the Board consider issuing a decision with reasons to follow, if that should, in any way, expedite the process.  The idea is that Hydro One needs to get on to and work with the lands, and the sooner it understands what this Board's decision is, it can start working towards that end point.

At this time, I would like to thank Board Staff and Madame Clerk and the court reporter for their efforts in this proceeding.  Hydro One has thought this process has been very workable and has created a good positive environment, and we would like to thank those parties for that.

Thank you.  Those are my submissions, subject to any questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  Mr. Rupert has a couple of questions.

Questions from the Board:

MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Nettleton the Alberta Surface Rights Act that you handed out excerpts from, are you aware of any court cases about section 14 of that Act?

MR. NETTLETON:  That is a very good question, Mr. Rupert, and I can tell you that I have had my legal library folks at Oslers work hard on this question and to look for any case law that has considered section 14 or section 98(1.1), and there is none.

MR. RUPERT:  Thank you.  Just to clarify one thing that I asked about yesterday, again.  I want to be sure I got it straight in my mind.

You talked about the delineation of lands issue and some comments Mr. Fallis had made.  I just want to be clear that Hydro One's position is it's asking for permission to access the widened corridor only; that is, the green markings on the maps that you provided.  And I think you said that in the event that you cannot agree with landowners, where you may need off-corridor access, that you would like the order to say that the parties have recourse to the Board.

MR. NETTLETON:  What I am envisioning, Panel, Mr. Rupert, that if there is need to come back to the Board to get early access for a specific land, that we could do so in an expedited manner and make a letter of request to indicate that these lands are needed to get to the widened corridor, and we would do that on the same terms and conditions as set out in this order and that we would then be able to make that request.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay, thanks.  That is helpful.

You made a comment.  I just want to make sure I follow it.  I will read the transcript on this, but it was concerning the -- I have written it down, but I may not have written it down correctly, but you essentially argued that this right of exclusion that a landowner has is not being trammelled on because it is occurring pursuant to section 98(1.1).  I didn't understand what you were getting at there.  

I mean, the fact that a piece of legislation may remove or reduce a right, nonetheless a right is still being reduced or removed.


MR. NETTLETON:  I apologize for being unclear, but you are quite right.  The right exists, but the legislation has decided to override that right.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay, that's --

MR. NETTLETON:  That's the point, and that is not -- the point is that that is not uncommon in other jurisdictions where there is need for public utilities to carry out activities related to the construction of infrastructure that is intended for a public benefit.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay.  And my last question, I think.  You referred early on to the -- in the argument of whether or not this is in fact an expropriation, or in substance an expropriation if the order were to be given.  You said expropriations occur under section 99 of the OEB Act, which gives the Board --

MR. NETTLETON:  Yes.

MR. RUPERT:  -- the authority to expropriate land in a couple of circumstances, and those being when a person has leave to construct under this part, or there is another exception which is not relevant here, or another circumstance.

Now, a little bit later on in the OEB Act - and I apologize if people haven't got it in front of them - there is a section called right to compensation for damages, section 102, which says:   

"Any person who has acquired land for a work under this Part by agreement with the owner of the land shall pay to the owner due compensation for any damages..."


Now, that 102, I take it, probably refers to 99, because it refers to "acquired land for a work", as distinguished from the damages language in section 98, which says "any damages resulting from an entry onto the land."


Now, the distinction you're drawing between 99 and 98, is there anything in those words that are -- what distinction do you draw from "acquired land for a work" and "entry onto land"?  Is that sort of furthering the distinction between expropriation under these parts, or is it...

MR. NETTLETON:  Absolutely.  Absolutely.  The word "acquired land" means to suggest that there has been an acquisition of an interest in land.

That distinguishes the language found in section 98, which is, "any damages to land resulting from entry on land".

One contemplates an acquisition, a taking of an interest in land, whereas the other recognizes and appreciates that the type of interest that is being -- is being obtained is an access, is a use of a land, not the acquisition of land.

MR. RUPERT:  Now, the last question on this is that Mr. Fallis has made the point, I think - and I am paraphrasing this, Mr. Fallis, so I may not get this quite right - the access-fee issue, as opposed to damages.  I think you argue, Mr. Nettleton, that it is silent and, therefore, there is no fees.

Mr. Fallis, if I can simplify, it essentially it is silent, and therefore more common-law or other legal principles would apply to the payment of a fee of this right.

Do you have any further comment on that, because your view seems to be it is silent, therefore no compensation.  Mr. Fallis' view is it is silent, and, therefore, other principles would come to bear on the question of whether or not compensation is due for access to land.

Do you have any specific response to that?  I didn't hear that in your final argument.

MR. NETTLETON:  I absolutely do, and I am hoping to be -- hoping that my transcript reads clearer than it obviously is.  But a clear distinction, Mr. Rupert, is that the cases and the position that Mr. Fallis takes and relies upon is that there is an expropriation.

That is what the cases -- those are the cases that he is referring to.  Those are expropriation cases.  Where there is an expropriation, there is inherent right to compensation.  And that is why, under the expropriation legislation, there is always provision for compensation.

But here there is no expropriation.  We are not expropriating an interest in land, and where there is no expropriation, unless the legislation contemplates expressly otherwise, there is no jurisdiction, no basis for the Board to impose compensation for that use of land.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay, I think I understand the distinction.  Thanks.

Those are my questions.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  I just want to confer with Board Staff that no one has asked to make oral comment in this proceeding.

MR. MILLAR:  No, Madam Chair.

Submissions by Ms. Ross:

MS. ROSS:  Madam Chair, if I may address the Board, please, on one point.

Our friend, Mr. Nettleton, has raised four points, referred to a piece of legislation which he did not refer to in his submissions-in-chief, if I can call them that.  He provided the Board with two legal definitions of in rem and in personam, and we would ask for the opportunity to clarify that, because I have before me, in fact, the Canadian dictionary of law, and as much as I would love to be able to remember what those two Latin terms mean, which I learned in law school and we don't use very frequently, and so my comments are no comment or castigation against my friend Mr. Nettleton.  

But for the purposes of the record and the Board's understanding, as I understood my friend's submission, he said -- I believe he was suggesting that the reference to in rem rights had to do with rights pertaining to land, and that in personam rights had to do with rights that were personal, in the sense of obtaining rent for land.  

In fact, as I listened to him, I thought that sort of sounds kind of maybe right, but I think I will look it up.  And what I thought was possibly right and what Mr. Nettleton suggested was the definition were both wrong.  And, with your leave, I would like to read the definitions onto the record and we will be pleased to provide you with a copy of them.

The second is there was reference made today to a piece of legislation that we have not had -- didn't have an opportunity to look at in preparing our submissions in response to the principal submissions of the applicant, and that is the reference to the Alberta Surface Rights Act.  We received an excerpt.  We have now managed to find the link on the computer and there are a couple of other sections we would like to draw to the Board's attention since we didn't have that opportunity in making our submissions this morning.  

But with respect to the definitions, and this is from the Dictionary of Canadian Law, second edition, published by Carswell, that "in personem," as a definition, "describes an action the only purpose of which is to effect the rights of any parties to that action."  That definition is from the Conflict of Laws textbook by James Gene McLeod.


"In rem", the definition is:  
"Something done or directed with reference to no person in particular, and therefore with reference to or against anyone it might concern or the whole world."


So it has to do with who is affected, as opposed to whether we're talking about rights in land or rights to rent.  

With respect to the Alberta Surface Rights Act, I refer to Mr. Ross, if I may.  

MR. ROSS:  Again, we have only briefly had the opportunity to review this legislation, but I would note several important distinctions and then draw a couple of the sections to the Board's attention, one of which I copied and will provide to you now. 

The distinction that I would suggest is that it refers to the process of survey for the entry onto land.  There are other actions contemplated but generally it is the process of survey.  More importantly, however, and I am providing you with a copy of the section right now, and I think it does punctuate the problem of providing an incomplete piece of legislation in these kinds of situations.

Section 19 articulates an entry fee for the right of entry.  It sets down a comprehensive scheme for the payment of an entry fee.  It indicates that that payment must be made before entry on to the land is allowed.  It goes on to, in section 20, which will be provided to you by my friend...


MR. NETTLETON:  Right of entry being a right to expropriate as opposed to -- 

MR. ROSS:  The right of entry is any right of entry that is contemplated under 12(1) or 13(1), which is what we're talking about --  

MR. NETTLETON:  No, we're not. 

MR. ROSS:  -- which is the example my friend was using. 

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, I will give you an opportunity to reply.  

MR. ROSS:  If I am confused, I apologize.  The piece of legislation I was provided by my friend was right of entry, section 12(1).  Then 14.   

I would also recommend that when doing a review of like legislation for the purpose of drawing analogy, other provincial schemes such as the Saskatchewan Act may be of interest to the Board for determining the appropriate mechanisms with regards to compensation for the right of entry on the property.  

It is of note that the scheme under section 19(2) for the amounts are somewhat akin to the scheme provided by Mr. Fallis, in his submissions today, and supplied in evidence, specifically $5,000, or the lesser -- the lesser of $5,000 or $500 per acre and minimum of $250 per part-acre.  

I think that concludes the point I was making.  Thank you.  

MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Chaplin has a question.  

QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD: 

MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Ross, I am just looking at this also, obviously for the first time.  But my understanding was that Mr. Nettleton was drawing our attention to section 14, and section 14 seems to be excluded from this scheme of entry fees.  Is that your understanding, as well, but you're still -- you are drawing the link because of this notion of entry fee?


MR. ROSS:  The notion of the entry fee, as well as the construction, "incidental to the construction, operation or removal of lines, et cetera."


It contemplates the process of construction and the fact that we're dealing with a two-stage analysis, i.e., access for the purpose of construction, then construction doesn't change what the end result is and what the purpose is.  

MR. NETTLETON:  That is not an accurate reflection of the -- 

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, just hold on.  Just for one moment.  You will have the last say, I assure you.  

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Rupert, did you have a question as well? 

MR. RUPERT:  Just further to that and then Mr. Nettleton can speak, but I just wanted to ask as well since I just read this, Mr. Ross.  Subsection 4, 19(4) under the page you just handed out says that:  
"Subject to section 14, the operator shall exercise the operator's right to enter..." 
which I take to mean there is – until the money has been paid.  There is no payment in 14.  Is your point that the activities we're talking about in this hearing sort of straddle sections 14 and 12 of this Alberta Act?  

MR. ROSS:  That's correct.  

MR. RUPERT:  Okay.  

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton.  

REPLY SUBMISSIONS BY MR. NETTLETON: 

MR. NETTLETON:  I apologize.  It is simply uncommon for surrebuttal to happen, so I apologize if I have interrupted my friend, but it was with that understanding.  

The Alberta Surface Rights Act scheme is one where rights of entry are contemplated for the purpose of gaining an interest in land and expropriation.  

"Right of entry' is a term of -- that is used in that contemplation.  That is to say, in use of acquiring an interest in land.  It is not a term that is only found and used in legislation found in Alberta.  The National Energy Board Act also has right of entry proceedings that contemplate the acquisition of land interests, of in rem rights, of interests in land.


That differs from what section 14 speaks to, which is the purpose and the exception to rights of entry being the purpose for surveying activities.  

The surveying activities that are described in section 14 are completely consistent with the language used in section 98(1.1), namely the fixing of the site of the location of a proposed work.


The Surface Rights Act goes so far as to be broader, because it deals with other types of operations, other than powerline, power transmission lines.  It is legislation that also applies to pipelines and pipeline facilities shall, such as tankage.  

So with those comments, it is simply not an accurate reflection to suggest that section 19 has any bearing upon the surveying activities associated with section 14.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  

MR. McMEEKEN:  Madam Chair, I apologize.  If I could make two quick comments.  I promise neither one of them is further submissions. 

MS. NOWINA:  If neither is further submissions, you may, Mr. McMeeken. 

MR. McMEEKEN:  The first is that I wish to put on the record that I apologize to Mr. Nettleton if my comments were taken directly as an insult to him, and I can see how, when I spoke about his submissions regarding the payment of compensation to any of the landowners, could be taken that way, in hindsight.  And I apologize very much.  

My point was simply that he took exception to questions on payments, and then made submissions regarding payments.  Not that he was trying to hide anything or divert this panel from any evidence which was before the Panel.  

Again, I sincerely apologize to Mr. Nettleton for having made those comments, and in a manner which would be taken offensively by him and I can see why they would be. 

My second comment is this.  I think that Mr. Nettleton misspoke my submissions when he said that I said that it was common practice to give 60 and 30 days' notice.  That wasn't.  I was talking about 60 and 30 days' notice for the need for my client, even if he has to pay for it out of his own expense -- 

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken. 

MR. McMEEKEN:  -- to get supervision. 

MS. NOWINA:  We will certainly read all of the transcripts to make sure we understand clearly what everyone's submissions were.  

MR. McMEEKEN:  Thank you.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you everyone for your participation in this hearing.  

Thank you to the court reporter, to the technical staff, and for the hotel which has been very accommodating and has helped to make this a very efficient proceeding.  Thank you very much.  

We are now adjourned.  

--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 1:55 p.m.  
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